
Copeland Borough Council
The Market Hall
Market Place
Whitehaven
CA28 7JG

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

AGENDA 
 

 Venue The Atrium, The Copeland Centre, Catherine Street, 
Whitehaven. CA28 7SJ  

 Date: Thursday, 26th May, 2022 
 Time: 2.00 pm 
 Contact Officer: Rose Blaney                      Tel: 07385 362773 

   

  
1.   Apologies for Absence 

 
 

 
2.   Declarations of Interests in Agenda Items:  

  
To receive declarations by Members and/ or co-optees of interests in 
respect of items on this Agenda.  
 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests or other registrable interests which have not already been 
declared in the Council’s Register of Interests. (It is a criminal offence 
not to declare a disclosable pecuniary interest either in the Register 
or at the meeting).  
 
Members are advised however, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such 
disclosable pecuniary interests which they have already declared in 
the Register, as well as any other interests.  
 
Members are reminded that they may not, by law, participate or vote 
in any discussion in a meeting on a matter in which they have a 
disclosable pecuniary interest  
 
Members are advised that they should leave the room during 
consideration of any items of business in which they have a 
disclosable pecuniary interest. 

 

Public Document Pack



  
3.   Minutes of the meeting held on 3 March 2022 1 – 6 

  
4.   Executive Forward Plan 7 – 10 

  
5.   Finance Report 2021-22 - Quarter 3 11 – 16 

 
 

6.   Performance Plan 2021-22 - Quarter 3 17 – 42 
 

 
7.   Annual Scrutiny Report 43 – 58 

 
 

8.   Outside Bodies Annual Report 59 – 146 
  

9.   Scrutiny Officer Updates 147 - 152 
  

10.   Date and Time of Next Meeting:  
 The next meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be 

held on Thursday 7th July 2022 at 2:00pm in The Copeland Centre, 
Catherine Street, Whitehaven.  
 

 

 
Membership: Councillors John Kane (Chair), Felicity Wilson (Deputy Chair), 
James Date, Gemma Dinsdale, Gwynneth Everett, Jeanette Forster, 
Joseph Ghayouba, Charles Maudling, Sam Meteer, Sam Pollen and 
Doug Wilson 
 
 
Contacts: Direct Dial: 07385 362773 
 E-mail: Rose.blaney@copeland.gov.uk 
 Website: www.copeland.gov.uk 



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON THURSDAY, 3 MARCH 2022 
 

Present: Councillors John Kane, in the Chair; James Date, Gwynneth Everett, 
Charles Maudling, Sam Meteer, Sam Pollen and Peter Tyson 
 
Officers: Rob Ward (Head of Nuclear, Energy and Sustainability), Steve Smith 
(Nuclear Projects and Programmes Manager) and Rose Blaney (Democratic 
Services Officer (Scrutiny)) 
 
Also in Attendance: Councillor Andy Pratt, John Maddison (ISH Programme 
Director) and Michael Walby (Burnetts Solicitors) 
 
 

OSC 21/82 Apologies for Absence  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Felicity Wilson, Doug 
Wilson and Joseph Ghayouba. 
 

OSC 21/83 Declarations of Interests in Agenda Items:  
 
There were no Declarations of Interest received. 
 

OSC 21/84 Minutes of the meeting held on 3 February 2022  
 
Councillors reviewed the minutes of the previous Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee (OSC) meeting. 
 
Resolved – That, with five votes for and two abstentions, the Committee agreed 
that the minutes of the meeting held on 3 February 2022 were approved as a 
true and accurate record. 
 

OSC 21/85 Executive Forward Plan  
 
The Committee reviewed the Executive Forward Plan. 
Resolved – That, with a unanimous vote, the Committee agreed that the 
Executive Forward Plan be noted.  
 
 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



OSC 21/86 West Cumbria Safety Partnership - Verbal Update  
 
Councillor Andy Pratt, the Community Safety Partnership (CSP) representative 
for Copeland, was in attendance, as requested by the Committee, to answer 
questions on the report submitted in January. 
 
Councillor Everett asked who the provider for drug and alcohol services was 
before Humankind, why did the provider change and what were the concerns. 
She also asked what Domestic Homicide Reviews (DHRs) changes were 
considered unreasonable. Councillor Pratt noted that DHR data is confidential 
but will check back with CSP to see what he can share. In relation to Humankind, 
they are the drug and alcohol service provider for Cumbria County Council and 
have been asked to expand into Copeland and Allerdale. There had been no 
previous service provider, other providers within CSP had been trying to cover 
the gap in the service, so Humankind have been brought in to help fill this gap. 
However, it is early days, and the workload is bigger than expected as there are 
now cases for those who did not know that the service existed being added to 
the backlog of cases. 
 
Councillor Meteer asked if DHRs cover murders, the reason that homicide is in 
the title if murder is not involved, inquired about the role of the co-ordinator 
and asked about the monitoring and maintenance for the Castle Park CCTV. 
Councillor Pratt noted that DHRs cover domestic violence and homicide 
between close family members, where circumstances dictate why a case will fall 
under a DHR. It was then commented that there is no co-ordinator throughout 
Cumbria as it is not a statutory service, the services is being provided by the 
districts but if there was a co-ordinator as had been advertised, then things 
would run smoother. Councillor Pratt then noted that the services is being 
covered with enough funds to continue the service to 2023, when it will be up to 
the new unitary to decide how to continue. Regarding the Castle Park CCTV, it 
was noted that the Police Station/Hub will have the date saved and access to 
the system, this is where a number of different groups are based including the 
police. The building is manned 24/7 and the CCTV system will be running 24/7 
too with maintenance being provided from CSP funding. Councillor Pratt aimed 
to find out which specific group will monitor the CCTV once it has been installed. 
 
Councillor Pollen asked for further information regarding CSP and why it has 
come to OSC for an update. He also asked; about funding, conversations around 
drug and alcohol, addressing concerns regarding crime and disorder, dedicated 
police presence and response times, correct contacts and homeless issues. The 
Scrutiny Officer informed members that the update from CSP was being 
presented to OSC as OSC are the designated Crime and Disorder Panel, as 
mandatorily required by the Police and Justice Act 2006 and the Crime and 

Page 2



Disorder (Overview and Scrutiny) Regulations 2009. Councillor Pratt explained 
that CSP meet quarterly and is run out of the old Police Station/Hub in 
Whitehaven. It is very confidential and helps keep an eye on all crime and 
disorder issues throughout Allerdale and Copeland with a focus on the good 
practice shared through working together. CSP was established four years ago 
and the group are hoping it will continue once the new unitary has been 
established. It was noted that CSP doesn’t review police funding but that the 
group do challenge police presence, with prevention being the key if possible 
but there is a known resource issue. But the group continue to express the 
concerns. However, if there is an issue in a particular area, councillors can 
contact Councillor Pratt or at least include him in the conversations to remain 
aware. Councillor Pratt and the Scrutiny Officer also agreed to look into creating 
a list of all Police Community Support Officers (PCSOs) in Copeland. Regarding 
drugs and alcohol, CSP don’t receive overall figures but strategies are discussed 
and the group are working with police to help improve issues. 
 
Regarding Homeless issues and issues with Homegroup, as brought up by 
Councillor Meteer, Councillor Pratt agreed to speak to both Homegroup and the 
Copeland Housing Team to work on improving issues, and if required, would 
bring a report to OSC. 
 
The Chair asked; how much funding had been provided to CSP from the Police 
and Crime Commissioner (PCC), what is happening to that PCC funding now it is 
no longer going to CSP, what external funding struggles are there, for further 
information on the Active Bystander training and for an update on the work 
being done at Castle Park. Councillor Pratt wasn’t confident on the amount of 
funding the PCC had provided CSP and did not know what was happing with the 
funding but has agreed to report back to OSC with the information. Regarding 
external funding, it was noted that all big funding pots are being pulled in 
different directions, but that Councillor Pratt will find out previous external 
funders and report back. Also, Active Bystander training is for those in the 
community, such as door staff and taxi drivers, to help them deal with issues 
without putting themselves physically in danger. The training is currently aimed 
at those involved in the night life of the borough but there are plans to extend it. 
Councillor Pratt also commented that the Castle Park project aims to be 
completed by the end of Spring. 
 
Resolved – That, the Scrutiny Officer and Councillor Pratt work together to make 
sure that all outstanding requests are completed, where possible, by the next 
OSC meeting. 
 
 
 

Page 3



OSC 21/87 Sustainability Strategy and Climate Action Plan  
 
The Head of Nuclear, Energy and Sustainability presented their report in three 
sections; Sustainability, Establishing public scrutiny to implement the People’s 
Panel Recommendations and the Nature and Climate Declaration. The Head of 
Nuclear, Energy and Sustainability took the Committee through each section, 
inviting councillors to ask questions after each section was complete. 
 
Councillor Pollen asked about transport, the impact on stability, the view of the 
people’s panel on the mine and nuclear, for further information on the youth 
panel (which fed into the people’s panel) and also asked why the council did not 
declare a climate emergency when the other councils did. The Head of Nuclear, 
Energy and Sustainability noted that transport came under the adaptions part of 
the strategy but highlighted that Copeland had avoided setting targets for issues 
that Copeland are unable to change, though they did also highlight areas where 
Copeland can have influence, such as working with Sellafield to possibly create a 
decent public transport system to help with impact. But it is a challenge due to 
lack of powers, which is why a Communications Strategy has been created for 
those things outside of CBC control that we can still influence. It was noted that 
though the Mine was discussed by the Peoples Panel, there was no expert input 
provided due to the limited time and that Nuclear was covered during the 
Energy meeting and was covered under one of the recommendations looking at 
wider consultation. The youth panel was a group of 62 young people who were 
involved in work groups to look at providing recommendations on the topics the 
Peoples Panel were considering. In relation to the Climate Declaration, the Head 
of Nuclear, Energy and Sustainability noted that not declaring a climate 
emergency was not a fault or mistake of Copeland. Rather, Copeland took a 
more measured approach to set targets and wait to make a declaration with all 
the data available to better set a target and make a commitment with urgency. 
 
In relation to establishing public scrutiny to implement the People’s Panel 
Recommendations, for which it was noted that there are only five 
recommendations which Copeland can take full responsibility for and have 
already included within the Climate Action Plan, it was recommended that, with 
the agreement of the volunteer group Copeland Climate Monitoring Group, OSC 
would receive quarterly reports to keep them updated on the implementation 
and to help provide the necessary scrutiny. 
 
Resolved – That,  

a) This paper be noted with comments and feedback provided on the draft 
Sustainability Strategy & Climate Action Plan. 

b) OSC support the proposal to establish a route for the Copeland Climate 
Monitoring Group (CCMG) to scrutinise progress against the Council’s 

Page 4



Climate Action Plan, as per recommendation 2 of the Copeland’s People 
Panel on Climate Change. With it being recommended that OSC receive 
quarterly updates, with the agreement of the CCMG. 

c) OSC supports the proposal for Copeland Council to make a Climate and 
Nature Declaration. 

 
OSC 21/88 Scrutiny Officer Updates  

 
The Scrutiny Officer gave the Committee updates on both the Work Programme 
and the Task & Finish Groups.  

A discussion was had regarding possible items to be added to the Work 
Programme, which included the possibility of creating a Task & Finish Group 
which could investigate a way to make accessing help easier for those struggling 
and in need. 
 

OSC 21/89 Date and Time of Next Meeting:  
 
The Chair informed members that the next Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
will be held on Thursday 7th April 2022 at 2pm in the Copeland Centre.  
 
 
 
 
[Councillor Maudling had to leave the meeting due to prior commitments] 
 

OSC 21/90 Exempt Information  
 
The Chair moved that 
 
RESOLVED:- under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item on the grounds 
that, if they were present, there could be disclosed to them exempt information 
as defined in the relevant paragraphs of Schedule 12A of the Act. 
 
 

OSC 21/91 Industrial Solutions Hub (ISH) Company  
 
The Nuclear Projects and Programmes Manager introduced John Maddison, the 
ISH Programme Director and Michael Walby from Burnetts, who were in 
attendance to help answer councillors’ questions. The Manager then proceeded 

Page 5



to introduce the report and explain the reason as to why the report has come to 
OSC. 
 
Members considered the report and a discussion followed.  
 
A vote was then taken, by way of a roll call.  
 
On a vote of 4 For, 1 Against and 1 Abstention, it was therefore: - 
 
RESOLVED – that recommendation 6 within the report be approved with a 
minor amendment. 
 
 
 
The Meeting closed at 4.28 pm  
 

 
Chair 

Page 6



Information Classification - UNCLASSIFIED

    
  

Executive 19 April 2022 
MAYOR’S FORWARD PLAN AND WORK PLAN  

  
This Plan is published in accordance with the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) 
Regulations 2012. It provides details of key decisions which the Executive will be making during the above period.  
  
A key decision is a decision made by the Mayor either by himself, through his Executive, by individual Executive members or by officers 
performing an Executive function and is one which either results in the Council incurring expenditure or making savings which are significant 
(compared to the local authority’s budget for the service or function to which the decision relates) or is one which is significant in terms of its 
effects on communities living or working in an area comprising of two or more wards or electoral divisions in the area. The Council’s 
constitution states that ‘significant’ includes (a) any decision by the Executive in relation to proposed recommendations to Council to amend 
the policy framework; (b) any single item of expenditure or savings in excess of £50,000; or (c) any decision which is likely to have a 
permanent or long term (more than 5 years) effect on the Council or the Borough.  
  
A key decision cannot be made until at least 28 clear days has elapsed between publication of this document and the day the decision is made. 
An exception to this rule is where such publication of intention is impracticable. In those circumstances the period of 28 clear days may be 
reduced to 5 clear days provided that the chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee has been informed of the matter and shorter 
notice has been publicised. If 5 clear days cannot be given then a decision may only be made if the Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee has agreed to the making of the decision on the grounds that the decision is urgent and cannot unreasonably be deferred.  
  
Where the decision maker is shown to be the Executive, the Executive will comprise of Mayor Mike Starkie and Councillors David Moore as 
Deputy Mayor, Steven Morgan and Andy Pratt. 
  
Copies of any document listed in the plan will be available from the officer shown in the table when the report is released, subject to them not 
containing confidential or exempt information.  
  
 
   

P
age 7

A
genda Item

 4



Information Classification - UNCLASSIFIED

Report  Who will 
make the 
decision  

Date on which the 
decision will be 
made  

Portfolio  
Holder 

Lead Officer  Key  
Decision 

Likely to contain 
confidential 
or exempt 

information 
 

Community Grants 
2022 onwards 

Executive Executive 
19 April 2022 

Environment, Place 
and Inclusive 
Communities 
Cllr Andy Pratt 

Pat Graham –  
Chief Executive 

Yes No 

2021/22 Finance 
Report – Quarter 3  
 

Executive   Executive 
19 April 2022 

Mayor 
Mike Starkie 

Steven Brown –  
Director of Financial 
Resources  
 

Yes No 

Social Media Policy Council Council 
May 2022 

Nuclear & Corporate 
Services 
Cllr David Moore 

Sarah Pemberton – 
Deputy Chief Executive  

Yes No 

2021/22 Council 
Performance Plan – 
Quarter 4 

Executive Executive 
June 2022 

Nuclear & Corporate 
Services 
Cllr David Moore 

Sarah Pemberton – 
Deputy Chief Executive  

Yes No 

2021/22 Finance 
Report – Quarter 4  
 

Executive   Executive 
June 2022 

Mayor 
Mike Starkie 

Steven Brown –  
Director of Financial 
Resources  
 

Yes No 

Outside Bodies 
Annual Report 

 
 
 
Council 

Overview & Scrutiny 
May 2022 
 
Council 
June 2022 

Nuclear & Corporate 
Services 
Cllr David Moore 

Sarah Pemberton – 
Deputy Chief Executive 

No No 

P
age 8



Information Classification - UNCLASSIFIED

Report  Who will 
make the 
decision  

Date on which the 
decision will be 
made  

Portfolio  
Holder 

Lead Officer  Key  
Decision 

Likely to contain 
confidential 
or exempt 

information 
 

Annual Scrutiny 
Report 

 
 
 
Council 

Overview & Scrutiny 
May 2022 
 
Council 
June 2022 

Nuclear & Corporate 
Services 
Cllr David Moore 

Sarah Pemberton – 
Deputy Chief Executive 

No No 

CMIQ Land 
Transaction 

Executive Executive 
June 2022 

Nuclear & Corporate 
Services 
Cllr David Moore 

Pat Graham –  
Chief Executive 

Yes Yes 

Health and Safety 
Monitoring Half 
Yearly Report 
1st Jan – 30th Jun ‘22 
 

Executive Executive 
July 2022 

Nuclear & Corporate 
Services 
Cllr David Moore 
 

Pat Graham –  
Chief Executive 
 

No No 

2022/23 Council 
Performance Plan – 
Quarter 1 

Executive Executive 
August 2022 

Nuclear & Corporate 
Services 
Cllr David Moore 

Sarah Pemberton – 
Deputy Chief Executive 

Yes No 

2022/23 Finance 
Report – Quarter 1  
 

Executive   Executive 
August 2022 

Mayor 
Mike Starkie 

Steven Brown –  
Director of Financial 
Resources  
 

Yes No 

2022/23 Council 
Performance Plan – 
Quarter 2 

Executive Executive 
November 2022 

Nuclear & Corporate 
Services 
Cllr David Moore 

Sarah Pemberton – 
Deputy Chief Executive 

Yes No 

P
age 9



Information Classification - UNCLASSIFIED

Report  Who will 
make the 
decision  

Date on which the 
decision will be 
made  

Portfolio  
Holder 

Lead Officer  Key  
Decision 

Likely to contain 
confidential 
or exempt 

information 
 

2022/23 Finance 
Report – Quarter 2  
 

Executive   Executive 
November 2022 

Mayor 
Mike Starkie 

Steven Brown –  
Director of Financial 
Resources  

Yes No 

P
age 10



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE    26 May 2022 
 
2021/22 Revenue & Capital Budget Monitoring Report – Q3 
 
EXECUTIVE MEMBER: Mayor Mike Starkie (Portfolio Holder for Finance). 
LEAD OFFICER: Steven Brown, Director of Financial Resources. 
REPORT AUTHOR: Steven Brown, Director of Financial Resources. 
 
SUMMARY:  
 
This Budget Monitoring report sets out the Quarter 3 (Q3 - to the end of 
December 2021) forecast year-end results against the Council’s Revenue 
and Capital Budgets for the 2021/22 financial year. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
1. Note the 2021/22 revenue forecast outturn net underspend of (£147k), 

(See Paragraph 1.4 and Appendix A);  
2. Note the summary of the revenue outturn variances set out in paragraph 

1.6).  
 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1. This report contains information on the Forecast Outturn position on 
spending against the Council’s Revenue Budget for 2021/22 following 
discussions with Budget Managers. 

1.2.  The Net Revenue Budget agreed by Council on 2nd March 2021 for 
2021/22 was £8,626k. The forecast outturn position for Q3 is based 
on the best available information and budget managers’ estimates 
regarding income and expenditure.  

1.3. Overview and Scrutiny will recall that service budgets have made no 
allowance for increased costs or reduced income arising from the 
COVID19 pandemic however, included in the budget is additional 
government emergency funding of £450k to meet these pressures.  

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



1.4. The table below summarises the forecast outturn position for Q3 
against the Council’s Revenue Budget for 2021/22. 

£’000 Revised 
Budget Net Exp Forecast Variance 

Net Expenditure on Services 8,626 7,235 8,479 (147) 
Less Sources of Finance (8,626) (6,470) (8,626) 0 
Total 0 765 (147) (147) 

 

1.5. There is a forecast net underspend against service budgets of £147k 
this includes the release of (£250k) of service specific COVID 
Emergency grant funding that has been allocated to service budgets 
experiencing financial pressures as a result of the pandemic.  

1.6. There are no services with significant variances over £100k. The two 
services that have had COVID funding allocated are Waste & 
Recycling of £150k and Parks of & Open Spaces of £100k. 

1.7. The 2021/22 budget agreed by Council in February assumes use of 
£1,845k from the Shortfall in External Resources Reserve and a 
£1,500k Capitalisation Directive to balance the budget; note the 
capitalisation directive has now received final approval by the 
secretary of state.  

Reserves 

1.8. The Council held revenue reserves of £14.1m as at 1st April 2021; a 
£2m General Reserve, £7.6m of Earmarked Reserves relating to 
externally funded projects (Externally Funded EMRs) and £6.6m of 
Earmarked Reserves set aside by the Council in previous years that 
have been earmarked for a specific purpose (CBC Funded EMRs). 

1.9. The General Reserve is part of the Council’s risk management process 
and is retained to protect the Council in the event of major 
unforeseen events as well as provide a buffer against future financial 
risks in the medium term. The minimum level of General Reserve was 
agreed by Council in March 2021 at £2,000k.  

Page 12



1.10. The table below sets out the forecast balances on the revenue 
reserves to 31st March 2022: 

£’000 General 
Reserve 

Externally 
Funded 
EMRs 

CBC 
Funded 
EMRs 

Total 

Balance as at 1st April 2021 2,001 7,559 6,591 16,151 
Budgeted transfers 
(to)/from reserves in 
2021/22 (per MTFS) 

 (3,827) (2,259) (6,086) 

Q1 forecast outturn  147   147 
Forecast balance as at 31st 
March 2022 2,148 3,732 4,332 10,212 

 

1.11. The CBC Funded Reserves as at 31st March 2022 is estimated at 
£4,332k, the budget for 2022/23 set out that an element of this will 
be used to meet the budget gap in the final year of the Council.  

Capital Budget 

1.12. The Q2 report included the six month forecast against the capital 
budget. The Q4 provisional outturn report will identify changes to the 
capital budget for consideration by Council.   

Treasury Management 

1.13. The Treasury Management function supports the overall objectives 
and priorities of the Council, by the use of effective treasury 
management techniques. The aim is to manage risks and ensure 
there are sufficient cash resources and long-term borrowings to 
finance the Council’s activities and capital investment programme 
whilst balancing this to the secondary objective of trying to minimise 
the costs of the net interest budget.  

1.14.  Long term borrowing remains at £5m as at Q3 (£5m at 30/06/21). 
There is a net interest cost to the Council, this is due to interest on 
the loan being c7.5% and investment interest being around 0.35% 
included in the Council’s budget. 

Page 13



1.15. The Council undertook no new borrowing in Q3 and is not expected 
to undertake any further long-term borrowing during 2021/22 in 
accordance with the 2021/22 Treasury Management Strategy. 

Local Government Reform (LGR) 

1.16. Following approval of the 2022/23 budget the Council paid its 
contribution to the implementation fund of c£1.6m.  

2. CONCLUSIONS 

2.1. The recommendations allow the preparation of the statutory 
financial statements of the Council. 

3. STATUTORY OFFICER COMMENTS  

3.1. Legal/ Monitoring Officer’s Comments are: No legal issues arise from 
the report. The report sets out the forecast financial outturn for the 
financial year 2021/22. 

3.2.  The Section 151 Officer’s comments are contained within the report. 

3.3. EIA Comments: Not applicable.  

3.4.  Policy Framework: Not applicable. 

3.5. Other Consultee Comments, if any: None. 

4. RESOURCE REQUIREMENTS 

4.1.  Contained within the report 

5. HOW WILL THE PROPOSALS BE PROJECT MANAGED AND HOW ARE 
THE RISKS GOING TO BE MANAGED? 

5.1. The proposals will be managed by Director of Financial Resources. 

6. WHAT MEASURABLE OUTCOMES OR OUTPUTS WILL ARISE FROM THIS 
REPORT? 

6.1. Contained within the body of the report. 

Page 14



List of Appendices  
 
Appendix A: 2021/22 Budget Monitoring Forecast Outturn by Service 
 
List of Background Documents: 
 
None 
 
  

 

Page 15



Appendix A 
2021/22 Budget Monitoring Forecast Outturn by Service 
 

 

Service Budget Net exp Forecast Q3 
Variance

Q2 
Variance

Beacon Museum 192,970 42,315 192,000 (970) (11,363)
Building Control 110,585 98,818 143,176 32,591 20,597
Business Support 1,060,425 977,715 1,100,589 40,164 5,978
Chief Executive (1,174,980) 545,479 (1,253,741) (78,761) (78,761)
Communications 96,701 97,763 90,312 (6,389) (250)
Copeland Community Fund 0 65,914 0 0 0
Customer Services 277,415 199,521 290,290 12,876 (780)
Democratic Services 367,165 297,515 396,427 29,262 (77,489)
Development Control 47,058 5,700 42,819 (4,239) 5,780
Dir Corp Serv & Comm Strategy 379,744 193,197 368,321 (11,423) (50,058)
Economic Development 183,642 (405,120) 178,652 (4,990) 6,360
Elections 120,684 90,513 119,010 (1,674) (8,000)
Environmental Health 514,442 124,989 511,002 (3,440) (936)
Financial Services 869,148 598,997 791,971 (77,177) (43,006)
Human Resources 333,402 238,386 333,533 131 (6,074)
Internal Audit 144,863 56,964 125,000 (19,863) (59,184)
Legal & Procurement Services 216,783 134,551 210,564 (6,219) 842
Nuclear 800 172,516 (2,882) (3,682) (3,682)
Park & Open Spaces 26,803 20,102 25,032 (1,771) 3,590
Property & Estates 312,792 234,594 311,263 (1,529) 10,212
Refuse & Recycling 2,722,571 2,077,028 2,705,371 (17,201) 1,963
Revenues & Benefits 780,262 585,197 763,566 (16,696) 18,466
Strategic Housing 613,732 460,299 612,032 (1,700) (2,591)
Strategic Planning 428,994 321,746 424,525 (4,469) (6,416)
Grand Total 8,626,000 7,234,699 8,478,832 (147,167) (274,802)

Page 16



  OSC12052022 
 

1 
 

CORPORATE PERFORMANCE REPORT FOR QUARTER THREE OF 2021-22 
(October, November, December) 
 
EXECUTIVE MEMBER:   Cllr David Moore 

LEAD OFFICER:  Sarah Pemberton,  
Director of Corporate Services and Commercial Strategy 

REPORT AUTHOR:  Peta Leigh,  
Performance Reporting and Policy Officer 

 
WHY HAS THIS REPORT COME TO THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE?   
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee supports the Executive in ensuring that 
the Council complies with its duties of Best Value and value for money.  It also 
has a key role to play in promoting and monitoring good performance 
management throughout the Council.    

RECOMMENDATION: 

a) Note the progress made against the Corporate Strategy Key Deliverables and 
Key Performance Indicators. 

 
1.        INTRODUCTION 
1.1 The 2020-24 Corporate Strategy was agreed by Full Council in December 
 2019.  The strategy sets out the Council’s Mission, which is  
 ‘To make Copeland a better place to live, work and visit’.  
 It also sets out the three ambitions that the Council will prioritise to 
 ensure that  Copeland’s community, economy, and environment reflect 
 the aspirations and prosperity of the area. These are: 
 

  Ambition 1 – Community: To ensure that our communities can thrive 
  Ambition 2 – Economy: To maximise opportunities for growth 
  Ambition 3 – Environment: To protect and enhance our environment 

 

1.2 Within the Performance Management and Improvement Framework, 
 the Executive monitors progress of the 2020-2024 Corporate Strategy 

Page 17

Agenda Item 6



  OSC12052022 
 

2 
 

 through the Corporate Strategy Delivery Plan and a suite of Key 
 Performance Indicators (KPIs).   
 
1.3 This report presents an overview of progress on Key Deliverables 
 and performance of KPIs for Quarter three of 2021-22.   

Tables containing full detail and analysis of Key Deliverables and KPIs are 
provided in appendices to the report. 
 

2. DETAILS 

2.1 The Corporate Strategy Delivery Plan lists 15 Key Deliverables which the 
 Council aims to achieve during 2021-22.  Each Key  Deliverable is broken 
 down into smaller sub-actions known as ‘Milestones’. 
 
2.2 At the end of Quarter three, all Key Deliverables were on track and nine 
 out of the twelve scheduled milestones had been met (75%).  
 
2.3 Table 1 shows the progress of Key Deliverables at the end of the quarter. 
 Full details are listed in Appendix A 
  
 Key Deliverable Progress 
KD 1 Domestic Abuse crisis support and intervention project.  
KD 2 Changing Futures Programme  
KD 3 Social Prescribing Project  
KD 4 Social Inclusion Programme  
KD 5 Copeland Works and Skills Partnership  
KD 6 Beacon Delivery Plan  
KD7 Shop Local Campaign  
KD 8 Towns Deals and Levelling Up Fund  
KD 9 Coastal and Tourism Enterprise Development Programmes  
KD 10 Leconfield Industrial Estate  
KD 11 Woodland and Tree Management Strategy  
KD 12 Climate Change Action Plan  
KD 13 Environmental Quality Strategy  
KD14 Fleet Replacement Project  

Page 18



  OSC12052022 
 

3 
 

 Key Deliverable Progress 
KD 15 Distington Hall Improvement Programme  
 

2.4 Twenty four Key Performance Indicators are monitored in support of 
 the Corporate Strategy Delivery Plan.  Comparative data was available 
 for 22 out of the 24 KPIs at the time of reporting. 
   
2.5 95% of KPIs were on target, or within 5% accepted variance of their 
 target, at the end of the quarter (23 out of 24). 
  
2.6 79% of KPIs performed equal to or better than the same quarter last 
 year and of the 5 KPIs that did not meet or exceed last year’s 
 performance, 4 did meet the target set for this quarter. 
 
2.7 Table 2 shows which KPIs met their quarterly targets. Full details and 

comparisons are listed in Appendix B. 

 Corporately owned Key Performance Indicators 
Was Q3 
target 
met? 

KPI 8 Percentage of Non-domestic Rates Collected  
KPI 10 Speed of processing - new HB claims  
KPI 11 Speed of processing - new CTR claims  
KPI 12 Speed of processing - changes of circumstances for HB claims  
KPI 13 Speed of processing - changes of circumstances for CTR claims  
KPI 14 Homeless relief cases  
KPI 15 Domestic Abuse support  
KPI 17 % of Freedom of information requests resolved within timescale  
KPI 21 % of 'major' planning applications determined within 13 weeks  
KPI 22 % of 'minor' planning applications determined within 8 weeks  
KPI 23 Percentage of 'other' applications determined within 8 weeks  
KPI 24 Percentage of planning appeals dismissed  

 

 

Page 19



  OSC12052022 
 

4 
 

 Non- corporately owned Key Performance Indicators 
Was Q3 
target 
met? 

KPI 1 Percentage of Council Tax collected  
KPI 2 Number empty homes <6months brought back into use  
KPI 3 Number of new homes approved  
KPI 4 Number of new homes built  
KPI 5 Number of AFFORDABLE homes built  
KPI 6 Number of larger family and aspirational homes built  
KPI 7 External funding for Economic Development Secured  
KPI 9 Local people supported with employability and skills  
KPI 16 Percentage of complaints resolved at stage one  

KPI 18 % Recycling Rate - percentage of household waste sent for reuse, 
recycling and composting  

KPI 19 Residual Waste collected per household (kgs) (PI.W&E-2)  
KPI 20 Percentage CTAX paid using direct debit payment method  

 
2.8 For the KPI that did not meet its quarterly target, the following  context is 
given: 
 
KPI 5 Number of Affordable Home Built: This is a non-corporately owned KPI as 
the outcome is not within the Council’s control. 
 
 

3 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS TO BE CONSIDERED 
3.1 There are no alternative options for consideration 

 

4  CONCLUSIONS 
4.1 The Quarter three out-turn position is, 

  100% of Key Deliverables were on track at the end of the quarter.  
  95% of KPIs met their target or were within 5% accepted variance of 

their target for the end of quarter three. 
  1 KPI did not meet its target 
  5 KPIs did not meet or exceed last year’s performance. 

Page 20



  OSC12052022 
 

5 
 

 
Progress of Key Deliverables is on track and there are no significant 
delays anticipated.   
 

5 COMMENTS AND CONSIDERATIONS 
 
5.1 EIA Comments: The Corporate Strategy and Service Plans against which 
 performance is measured have undergone Equality Impact Assessments.  
 Individual projects and partnership delivery against the Corporate 
 Delivery Plan are subject to EIAs. 
 
5.2 Climate/Environmental Impact Commentary: This report provides a 
 progress update on key performance indicators relating to climate and 
 environmental policy 
 
5.3 Policy Framework: Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules as set 
 down in the Council’s Constitution. This report directly reports on the 
 delivery of the Corporate Strategy and associated documents. 

 
6 STATUTORY OFFICER COMMENTS   
 
6.1 Legal comments are: No legal issues arise from this report 

6.2 The Monitoring Officer’s comments are: This report provides a progress 
 update to the Executive on key performance indicators arising from the 
 Corporate Strategy. Any legal issues arising from any individual 
 deliverables will be dealt with as appropriate.  
 
6.3 The Section 151 Officer’s comments are: Contained within the report 
 The Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy, 2021-22 Budget and 
 Capital Plan  underpins the Corporate Strategy 

 
 
Other Consultations 
 This report was presented to the Executive on 15th March 2022.  
 The minutes of the Executive state that the item was RESOLVED – that 
 progress made against the Corporate Strategy key deliverables and 
 performance measured through Key Performance Indicators at the end 
 of Quarter Three of 2021/22 be noted. 

Page 21



  OSC12052022 
 

6 
 

 
6.   APPENDICES  
 Appendix A – Key Deliverables Report for Q3 of 2021-22 
 Appendix B – Key Performance Indicators Report for Q3 of 2021-22 

Page 22



1

Corporate Strategy Delivery Plan –Key Deliverables Report for Q3 of 2021-22 
 

Ambition 1 – Let’s ensure our communities can thrive 
 

 
Key Deliverable 1 Domestic Abuse crisis support and intervention project. 
 
Action Quarter Milestone Outcome Note Progress  

Q1 Funding in place and recruitment of 
additional Domestic Abuse Support 
Officers 

 
Completed 

100k funding has been secured via Cumbria 
County Council under the new Domestic Abuse 
Government Bill. Two additional fixed term roles 
to enhance our existing service were recruited 
during Q1. 
Future joint working planned with County Council 
on Domestic Abuse Strategy and Delivery Plan  

Q3 Carry out a county wide needs 
analysis in relation to Bill and to 
inform county Domestic Abuse 
Strategy 

 

In discussions with County Council and funders 
around how to support County work re DA Bill 
due to potential overlap with work planned. 
WCDAP report completed and will feed in to this 
review.  

Q3 Draft Countywide Domestic Abuse 
Strategy agreed  

CCC have published their strategy, work is still 
ongoing with districts 

Continue to provide 
Domestic Abuse and 
exploitation intervention 
and crisis support.  
In response to statutory 
changes brought about by 
the Domestic Abuse Bill 
2020, work with external 
partners to embed 
changes and provide a 
holistic approach to the 
new duty 

Q4 Q4 -Strategy agreed and action 
plan commenced. Review of 
programme. 

Due Q4 
  

 

 
 
 

P
age 23



2

 
Key Deliverable 2 Changing Futures Programme 
 
Action Quarter Milestone Outcome Note Progress  

Q1 Resource and project scope 
agreed 

 
Completed 

The Changing Futures project scope and governance 
arrangements have been agreed by the joint working 
group.  
Copeland will inform the Accommodation stream of 
project 

Q2 Project Plan Development and 
sign off  

Completed 

Cumbria County Council are recruiting a project 
support team and a pilot was undertaken in Q3. 
Project plan has been signed off by the Executive in 
Q2, and most partners have signed off agreement. 

Using a collaborative 
approach with Districts 
and County Council to 
support people who have 
multiple complex needs 
(drugs, criminal 
behaviour, ASB etc.) and 
ensure a holistic approach 
and sustainable 
tenancies.  

Q4 Project Implementation, 
monitoring and evaluation 

Due Q4 

Draft grant agreement with legal to secure funding, 
so project delayed slightly due to delay in receiving 
this. Hub capacity to lead this is limited, and there is 
a proposal to move the pilot to the NHS MDT in 
Copeland due to their capacity to take it on and their 
challenge around whether this needs to be done 
outside of existing roles/teams.  

 

 
 

P
age 24



3

 
Key Deliverable 3 Social Prescribing Project 
 
Action Quarter Milestone Outcome Note Progress  

Q1 Complete a gap analysis of local 
provision 

 
Completed 

Gap analysis exercise was completed and two new 
groups engaged were engaged as a result to help meet 
local need.   
  
There were 56 groups registered on the Social 
Prescribing Directory and 10 new volunteers were 
recruited via these groups in Q1. 
  
The Social Prescribing Directory was relaunched and the 
profile promoted on Copeland website and social media. 
  
Options appraisal was carried out for digital platform 
provision. 

Q2 Funding secured for continuation 
of project and delivery of Digital 
Social Prescribing Platform  
 
Hold two well-being festivals 

 
Completed 

 Funding bid for the continuation of the Social 
Prescribing Project was made.  If agreed project will be 
funded for a further 18 months from Dec 21. 
   
The Millom Health and Wellbeing Festival was run over a 
whole week during June.  The festival was held in 
various locations around the town and over 300 people 
participated in and enjoyed events such a Craft Making, 
Archery, Wildlife Sessions, Smoothie making and Health 
MOTs. 
  
A one day Health and Wellbeing Festival was also held in 
Whitehaven in August with over 140 attendees.  
  

To facilitate and 
encourage people to 
help themselves to 
improve their own 
health and wellbeing 
through the 
coordination of 
information, 
signposting and 
support. 

Q4 Development of digital platform 

Due Q4 

This has been pushed back to Q4 due to delay in getting 
CCF application in and determined. Funding has now 
been agreed, in discussions with procurement about 
tender process required and due to contract during Q4. 

 

P
age 25



4

Action Quarter Milestone Outcome Note Progress  
Q4 Launch of digital platform Due Q4   

 
 
Key Deliverable 4 Social Inclusion Programme 
 
Action Quarter Milestone Outcome Note Progress 

Q1 Open the New Ideas Funding 
applications through the Well 
Whitehaven Programme 

 
Completed 

The New Ideas Fund Applications were opened in June.   
Aimed at improving the lives of those living in the 
Mirehouse, Corkickle and Snebro community, the fund 
aims to support new ideas, activities and events. 
  
Through the Social Investment Programme funding 
was extended to local Credit Union to support Hardship 
Funds 

Q2 Revised Well Whitehaven Action 
Plan signed off  
 
Launch of Community Grants 
Fund and applications invited  
 
Business case and delivery 
options developed for Rebuild- 
Community enterprise to 
upcycle furniture and white 
goods 

 
Completed 

The Well Whitehaven relaunch with new action plan 
focused on lasting impact was completed.  The 
programme has been officially relaunched and the 
delivery plan approved by the support partners 
  
We have commissioned the Princes Trust to deliver an 
employability project targeting 18-30 year olds. They 
will recruit from a cohort of Young people who are not 
currently in education or employment. 
  
In partnership with the Copeland Community Fund, the 
New Ideas Fund and Community Grants have been 
launched successfully and the panel have approved 4 
applications to date. 
  
The Re-Build Community Enterprise business case has 
been drafted and is expected to be escalated to CLT 
for approval in Q3. 

Working in partnership 
through our Social 
Inclusion Programme to 
secure support and 
deliver community 
development activities 
for those disadvantaged 
by social, financial and 
digital exclusion, debt, 
food and fuel poverty, 
mental health issues, 
domestic abuse, limited 
social and family 
support, and drug and 
alcohol abuse. 
  

Q4 Programme monitoring and Due Q4   

 

P
age 26



5

Action Quarter Milestone Outcome Note Progress 
evaluation 

Q4 Prince’s Trust Employability 
Programme commenced Due Q4 

Due to Covid restrictions and people working from 
home it has been decided to postpone this until March 
2022 

 
 
 
Key Deliverable 5 Copeland Works and Skills Partnership 
 
Action Quarter Milestone Outcome Note Progress  

Q1 Quarterly update on the Programme 

 
Completed 

During the quarter 23 people were engaged. 
Skills and training offers included, 
Sector Development x 11 
Wage subsidy x 6 
Employability Fund x 2 
Bespoke Support x 2 
NVQ X 2 

Q2 Quarterly update on the Programme 

 
Completed 

During the quarter 34 people were supported 
with employability and skills, including: 
Sector Development x 18 
Wage subsidy x 7 
Employability Fund x 7 
Bespoke Support x 0 
NVQ X 2 

Q3 Quarterly update on the Programme 

 
Completed  

During the quarter 52 people were supported 
with employability & skills: 
Sector Development x 2, Wage subsidy x 7, 
Employability Fund x 10, Bespoke Support x 29, 
NVQ X 3, Apprentice Subsidy x 1.  
 

Ensure we sustain and 
develop our leadership 
and facilitation of the 
Copeland Work and 
Skills Partnership, and 
its continuously 
developing programme 
of complementary 
partnership delivery, to 
meet the known gaps in 
service to assist 
Copeland residents 
develop skills and access 
work opportunities. 

Q4 Annual review of the Programme Due Q4   

 

  

P
age 27



6

 
Ambition 2 – Economy Let’s maximise opportunities for growth 
 
 
Key Deliverable 6 Beacon Delivery Plan 
 
Action Quarter Milestone Outcome Note Progress  

Q1 Reopen The Beacon to the public  
Digital Trails app to go live 

 
Completed 

The Beacon successfully reopened its door in 
May.  Offering Wild Life Photographer of the 
Year exhibition.  The Digital Trails app was 
trailed in May.(live in Sept) 
  
The Beacon was successful in securing 
funding from the Culture Recovery Fund to 
help recovery following the pandemic. 

Q2 Completion of the Audience 
Development Project - assessment 
and recommendations.  
 
Tender awarded for Beacon website 
refresh 

 
Completed 

Audience Development Project was 
commenced and initial assessment, analysis 
and recommendations have been received 
and have compiled into an action plan 
detailing 7 priority short, medium and long-
term objectives. 
  
The Beacon website refresh has been 
completed 

Q3 Business Plan drafted 
 

Completed 
  

Reimagine the Beacon offer 
to tourism sector and 
provide opportunities for 
lifelong learning for 
residents and visitors and 
point of access to arts, 
culture and creative 
thinking skills to underpin 
wellbeing and STEAM 
engagement (science, 
technology, engineering 
arts and maths). 

Q4 Business plan delivery agreed and 
baseline measures and milestones 
for 2022/23 agreed 

Due Q4 
  

 

 
 

P
age 28



7

 
Key Deliverable 7 Shop Local Campaign 
 
Action Quarter Milestone Outcome Note Progress  

Q1 First Young Entrepreneurs Market 
 
Welcome Back Fund submission 
  
Engagement with stakeholders 
on Events Plan 

 
Completed 

 First young Entrepreneurs Market was held 
in June. Inviting young entrepreneurs to take 
up stalls. Second Market planned for July and 
programme of mentorship and support is 
being secured. 
  
Partnership approach with CCC saw 
Whitehaven parking restrictions lifted for 
delivery vehicles 
  
 Consultation was carried out  with Town and 
Parish Councils on Copeland Welcome Back 
Event Plan 
Welcome Back Fund submission made to 
DLUHC outlining activity plan for 12 months. 

Q2 Agreement of activity plan and 
delivery of Copeland Events by 
DLUHC 

 
Completed 

Welcome Back Fund has been approved by 
DLUHC. Procurement and delivery plan are 
now in progress 

Q2 Young Entrepreneurs Mentorship 
Programme governance and 
delivery agreed 

 
Completed 

Four markets now successfully coordinated 
and delivered. 
First business validation completed with 12 
participants.  

Q3 Options appraisal market 
development  

Completed 
Four month appraisal completed and sent to 
the Corporate Leadership team for overview 

Q4 Business Directory Completed - 
2500 businesses  Due Q4   

Play an active role in 
business development 
and growth across 
Copeland.  Reopening our 
high streets safely in a 
post Covid setting.  
Repurposing our town 
centres and encouraging 
uptake of vacant town 
centre premises and 
supporting local 
entrepreneurialism. 

Q4 Evaluation of year one of project. 
Scope agreed for Year two Due Q4   

 

 

P
age 29



8

Key Deliverable 8 Towns Deals and Levelling Up Fund 
 
Action Quarter Milestone Outcome Note Progress  

Q1 Formal acceptance of Heads of Terms 
by Cleator Moor 

 
Completed 

Successful bid resulting in Cleator Moor Town 
Deal Board being awarded £22.5m and Millom 
Town Deal Board £20.6m 
  
Completion of projects in Cleator Moor and 
Millom funded by Towns Deal accelerator fund 
included 
Cleator Moor: - a new 3G multi-sports pitch, an 
upgrade to the Play Park and two new multi-
user paths to improve access points to the C2C 
cycle track; 
 Millom: - an upgrade to two Play Parks, a new 
multi-use and accessible track at Millom School, 
for the use of the school, a new digital app to 
guide people on a series of trails around the 
Millom. 

Q2 Cleator Moor realign projects to 
match with funding offer and submit 
to MHCLG  
 
-Formal acceptance of Heads of 
Terms by Millom and realign projects 
to match with funding offer and 
submit to MHCLG  
 
Whitehaven Emerging TIP complete 

 
Completed 

Cleator Moor realign projects to match with 
funding offer and submit to MHCLG 
 
Formal acceptance of Heads of Terms by Millom 
and realign projects to match with funding offer 
and submit to DLUHC 
 
Whitehaven Emerging TIP complete 

Q3 Update on business cases for Cleator 
Moor and Millom TIPs  

Completed 
  

To work on the future role 
of Town Centres to 
identify additional 
resources and partners to 
engage in developments 
bespoke to each of our 
towns. 
  
Engage in partnership 
activity to identify and 
use external funding to 
maintain momentum on 
town centre improvement 
activity. 

Q4 Business cases for Cleator Moor and 
Millom TIPs submitted for local 
appraisal prior to DLUHC submission 

Due Q4 
  

 

 
 

P
age 30



9

 
Key Deliverable 9 Coastal Programme  Tourism Programme   Enterprise Development Programme 
 
Action Quarter Milestone Outcome Note Progress  

Q1 Updates on Coastal 
Development Programme  
 
Updates on Tourism 
Development Programme 

 
Completed 

A public art project is ongoing with five artists 
commissioned to produce works for the coastal art 
trail. 
  
The virtual Run the Edge event went live on 1st 
April and took place during the May. 
  
Footpath work around St Bees (3 schemes in all) 
were completed. 
  
Second virtual tourism event hosted by Copeland 
BC and Allerdale BC 
Launch of  Cumbria Tourism’s current  ‘Perfect 
Place to Be’ Recovery Marketing campaign 

Sector Development- 
Maximising opportunities 
for growth through 
delivering programmes to 
support our towns and the 
diversification agenda 
through our enterprise 
programme, developing the 
tourism sector and our 
coastal leisure and visitor 
offer.   

Q2 Updates on Coastal 
Development Programme  
 
Updates on Tourism 
Development Programme 

 
Completed 

We are working with Cumbria County Council to 
develop the Hadrian's Wall Cycling & Walking 
Corridor as a potential submission for future 
Levelling Up Fund; linking with LDNPA on See 
More Lakes and reflecting through Town Deals 
Cleator Moor’s role as a gateway to Ennerdale and 
the lakes and Millom as a gateway to Lake District 
Coast. 
  
Discussions have commenced on a joint (Copeland 
and Allerdale) The Cultural Strategy will be 
delivered by early New Year 2022 through a 
dedicated steering group, wide engagement and 
workshops. 
  
Connecting Cumbria’s Hidden Coast Programme 
Contractor has been appointed and work is 

 

P
age 31



10

Action Quarter Milestone Outcome Note Progress  
expected to start on Silecroft Beach Café in 
September. 
  
The Feasibility study for a developing river 
crossing over the river Esk has now been 
completed 
The public art programme “Deep Time” will 
officially launch via a dedicated website September 
21. 
Tale Trails: We have commissioned 6 interactive 
maps showcasing existing footpaths along the 
coast and which will be aimed at families using 
stories developed from the local history and 
heritage of the chosen locations.  

Q3 Enterprise research complete  
 
Updates on Coastal 
Development Programme  
 
Updates on Tourism 
Development Programme 

 
 

Enterprise research not due for completion until 
Q4. 
 
Art programme well underway, plus planned spend 
against walking/cycling upgrades. 
Delays to Silecroft cafe construction - as builder 
appointed, but performance bond remaining 
outstanding.  Options being assessed against 
potential re-tender.  
Coastal Challenge event to be reviewed in light of 
Covid impact on sector. 

Q4 Agree Enterprise Development 
programme/pilot  
 
Updates on Coastal 
Development Programme  
 
Updates on Tourism 
Development Programme 

Due Q4 

  

 
 

P
age 32



11

 
Key Deliverable 10 Leconfield Industrial Estate 
 
Action Quarter Milestone Outcome Note Progress  

Q1 Funding Bid lodged 

 
Completed 

Town Deal secured subject to business case. 
Levelling-Up Fund bid was submitted for a 
Cleator Moor Innovation Quarter (CMIQ), the 
total grant funding sought by the project is 
£14m which will support the development of 
the campus for the Industrial Solutions Hub 
(ISH). 
  
  

Q2 Consultation with current tenants 
of Leconfield Estate  

Completed 
 

Consultation progress is on track.  Planning 
consultation workshop to follow in Q3 

Development of ISH 
enterprise organisation 
based on Leconfield Estate, 
Cleator Moor in partnership 
with the NDA and SL.  
Business cluster campus to 
Capitalise on skills and 
specialism in SL supply 
chain and on site as SL 
transition and 
decommissions to ensure 
skills are not lost and that 
our economy is supported 
by creating a  hub of 
activity and knowledge 

Q3 Phase 1 of Leconfield Estate site 
development plan drafted  

Completed 
  

 

 
 

P
age 33



12

 
Ambition 3 – Let’s protect and enhance our environment 
 
 
Key Deliverable 11 Woodland and Tree Management Strategy 
 
Action Quarter Milestone Outcome Note Progress  

Q1 Woodland and Tree Management 
Strategy drafted  
 
Expression of interest submitted 
for Coastal Community Forest  

Completed 

Strategy Drafted and shared with Corporate 
Leadership Team for feedback 
Recruitment of Volunteer environmental 
wardens commenced.  
Initial expression of interest was submitted by 
the county wide project partners to the Forestry 
Commission for a proposed Coastal Community 
Forest in Cumbria.  
  

Q2 Strategy and Action plan signed 
off 

 
Completed 

Strategy and Action plan signed off by CLT  
Mgmt strategy going to Exec Oct.21 
Volunteers recruitment started. Progress is 
expected to pick up speed when new Parks and 
Open Spaces officer takes up post in Nov. 

Q3 Tree Officer recruited  
 
Volunteer environmental wardens 
invited/recruited/trained 

 

Tree officer role is paused in abeyance of LGR 
 

Ensure tree and woodland 
management by Initiating 
woodland creation and 
encouraging our 
communities to care for 
their environment.  
Maintain the Council’s tree 
stock (circa 100 hectares) 
including woodlands and 
specimen amenity trees. 
Through our 3 year cyclical 
inspection program. 

Q4 Trees Surveys completed Due Q4   

 

 
 

P
age 34



13

 
Key Deliverable 12 Climate Change Action Plan 
 
Action Quarter Milestone Outcome Note Progress  

Q1 Climate Steering Group 
established 
  
Energy efficiency and 
generation study complete 

 
Completed 

Climate Steering Group established to drive action 
plan. 
A people’s panel on climate change has been 
established. 
Energy efficiency and generation study completed 
and recommendations received. 

Q2 Launch Copeland People’s 
Panel on Climate Change 

 
Completed 

Panel launched and event to socialise 
recommendations to stakeholders in Oct 
  
30 residents joined Copeland Borough Council’s 
people’s panel in July. They met on 12 occasions 
and, guided by environmental experts, have made 
recommendations on what changes could be 
implemented to reduce Copeland’s carbon 
footprint and create a more sustainable future.  
Residents are invited to find out about the 
recommendations at an online event in October 
21. 

Q3 Carbon Literacy Training 
implemented  
Recommendations made by 
People’s Panel  
Reporting frameworks updated 
to include climate impact 
assessment 

 
Completed 

  

Play our part as a 
responsible authority, by 
Implementing our Climate 
and environmental 
Programme.  Reducing 
emissions and harm to the 
environment and positively 
contributing to the 
wellbeing of our planet by 
decarbonising our own 
organisation and seeking to 
influence others to support 
the transition towards a 
zero-carbon Copeland. 

Q4 Climate Action Plan updated 
(based on recommendations)  
10 Point Plan complete  
Sustainability incorporated into 
Service Planning for FY22-23 

Due Q4 

In progress/on track - draft for consultation due 
end Jan 2022 for agreement by April 2022 

 

 
 

P
age 35



14

 
Key Deliverable 13 Environmental Quality Strategy 
 
Action Quarter Milestone Outcome Note Progress  

Q1 Engagement with residents and 
community groups around litter 
and environmental enhancement  

Completed 

Seasonal Beach Cleaning staff secured  to 
emptying bins, monitoring recycling sites, 
picking litter or maintaining safety equipment 
at Silecroft, Haverigg, Seascale and St Bees 
Community Litter Pick held at Mirehouse 

Q2 Complete data gathering and 
needs analysis to inform strategy  

Completed 

Information from residents via customer 
relations or general feedback has been used 
to inform strategy.  
Draft Strategy commenced. 

Q3 Draft Environmental Quality 
Strategy approved  

 Draft strategy commenced Q2 

Litter Strategy- To make 
Copeland a green and clean 
place to live, work and visit 
through implementation of 
a litter strategy with 
increased community 
engagement, education and 
a collaborative approach. 

31-Mar-
2022 

Q4 Action Plan implemented with 
resources secured Due Q4   

 

 
 

P
age 36



15

 
Key Deliverable 14 Fleet Replacement Project 
 
Action Quarter Milestone Outcome Note Progress  

Q1 Options analysis 

 
Completed 

A small Fleet Replacement working group has 
been formed and project scope agreed.  
Business requirements and options for 
replacement were considered and will inform 
the Business Case. 

Q2 Draft Business Case approved 

 
Completed 

Fleet Replacement business case was 
approved by the Corporate Leadership Team 
and the Executive and an update was 
provided for the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. 

Q3 Tender and contract award.    

Enhance and protect our 
environment through 
renewal and replacement of 
our fleet.  Demonstrating 
value for money and quality 
service delivery. 

Q4 Works commence with expected 
completion and delivery of fleet 
due  
Q2_2022/23 

Due Q4 

  

 

 
 

P
age 37



16

 
Key Deliverable 15 Distington Hall Improvement Programme 
 
Action Quarter Milestone Outcome Note Progress  

Q1 Distington Hall walled Garden 
works.  
 
Tenders for expansion works to 
Whitehaven Cemetery 

 
Completed 

Chapel of remembrance had a spring clean 
and the interior painted.  A Recycling Unit 
and educational signage was installed  in 
chapel (no plastics policy) 
  
Utilising Community Payback Service 
Distington Hall Walled Garden was tidied up 
including clearing of overgrown pathways and 
tree pruning.  A small project group has been 
established to collate development ideas for 
the garden. 
Tender invited for Whitehaven cemetery 
groundworks. 

Q2 Chapel refurbishment 
commenced.  
 
Tender awarded for Whitehaven 
Cemetery expansion 

 
completed 

Chapel refurbishment has commenced and is 
ongoing.   
Cemetery Expansion Project is to review 
unused spaces that have been identified in 
other wards. 
Community Payback volunteers have helped 
to clear overgrown parts of the Cemetery. 

Q3 Cemetery ground works project 
commence  
Orchard Planting 

 
  

Deliver investment and 
improvements through our 
Bereavement Services 
Investment Programme 

Q4 Chapel refurbishment works 
completed and signed off  
Submission for Green Flag award 
at Distington Hall - international 
standard for quality of parks and 
OS 

Due Q4 

  

 

 
 

P
age 38



1

Quarterly KPI report for Quarter 3 of 2021 -22 

 
Key Performance 
Indicator 

Value at 
end of Q3 

 Target 
for Q3 

 Value Vs 
Target  

Was the 
target 
met? 

Short 
trend 

Analysis and notes from Manager Annual 
KPI 
target 

KPI 1 Percentage of Council 
Tax collected 80.27% 71.37% 8.90%   

Compared to 82.88% collected in the same quarter 
last  year. 

95% 

KPI 2 Number empty homes 
<6months brought back into 
use 69 

80 
(target for 

year) 
-11   

Data collation is complex, time consuming and 
relies on Carlisle providing the report through the 
shared service. No comparison for same quarter last 
year as target is annual 

80 

KPI 3 Number of new homes 
approved 63 35 28   

Compares to 45 approved in the same quarter last 
year.  Overall number of new homes approved in 
the first 3 quarters of this year is 470, which 
exceeds annual target of 140 

140 

KPI 4 Number of new homes 
built 47 35 12   

Compared to 37 new homes built in the same 
quarter last year 

140 

KPI 5 Number of 
AFFORDABLE homes built 0 5 -5   

There were no affordable homes built in the same 
quarter last year 

5 

KPI 6 Number of larger 
family and aspirational 
homes built 

26 5 21   

Compared to 27 larger and aspirational homes built 
in the same quarter last year 

5 

KPI 7 External funding for 
Economic Development 
Secured 

£21,55000 £125,000 £20,30000   

DLUHC - Cleator Moor Towns Fund (5%) 
 
DLUHC - Millom Towns Fund (5%) 

£500,000 

KPI 8 Percentage of Non-
domestic Rates Collected 90.98% 74.25% 16.73%   

Compared to 95.20% for the same quarter last year 99% 

KPI 9 Local people supported 
with employability and skills 52 15 37   

Sector Development x 2, Wage subsidy x 7, 
Employability Fund x 10, Bespoke Support x 29, 
NVQ X 3, Apprentice Subsidy x 1.  
Compared to 28 in the same quarter last year 

60 

P
age 39



2

Key Performance 
Indicator 

Value at 
end of Q3 

 Target 
for Q3 

 Value Vs 
Target  

Was the 
target 
met? 

Short 
trend 

Analysis and notes from Manager Annual 
KPI 
target 

KPI 10 Speed of processing - 
new HB claims 18 18 0   

Compared to average of 14 days to process new HB 
claim in the same quarter last year 

18 

KPI 11 Speed of processing - 
new CTR claims 17.97 18 0.03   

Compared to an average of 28 days to process new 
CTR claims in the same quarter last year 

18 

KPI 12 Speed of processing - 
changes of circumstances for 
HB claims 

7.33 10 2.67   

Compared to 13.25 days to process in the same 
quarter last year 

10 

KPI 13 Speed of processing - 
changes of circumstances for 
CTR claims 

6.22 10 3.78   

Compared to 18.62 to process in the same quarter 
last year 

10 

KPI 14 Homeless relief cases 95% 90% 5%   
21 out of 22 cases resolved within 56 days 
Compared to 94% in the same quarter last year 

90% 

KPI 15 Domestic Abuse 
support 100% 90% 10%   

100% also achieved in the same quarter last year 90% 

KPI 16 Percentage of 
complaints resolved at stage 
one 

94.00% 92.00% 2.00%   

Compared to 90% in the same quarter last year 92.00% 

KPI 17 Percentage of 
Freedom of information 
requests resolved within 
timescale 

100.00% 90.00% 10.00%   

Compared to 89% resolved within timescale in the 
same period last year. 
150 FOI requests received in the quarter, 150 
closed within timescale 

90.00% 

KPI 18 % Recycling Rate - 
percentage of household 
waste sent for reuse, 
recycling and composting 
(PI.W&E-3) 

41.65% 
(Value at 

end of Q2)  

40.00% 
(Target 
for Q2) 

1.65%   

41.65% based on actual data for Q2 
Compared to 41.25% for Q2 last year 
 
Data not yet available for Q3 
 

40.00% 

KPI 19 Residual Waste 
collected per household (kg)  

123.54 
(Value at 

end of Q2) 

120 
(Target 
for Q2) 

3.54   

123.54 based on actual weight data 
Compared to 122.52 for Q2 last year. 
 

120 

P
age 40



3

Key Performance 
Indicator 

Value at 
end of Q3 

 Target 
for Q3 

 Value Vs 
Target  

Was the 
target 
met? 

Short 
trend 

Analysis and notes from Manager Annual 
KPI 
target 

Data not yet available for Q3 

KPI 20 Percentage CTAX 
payed using Direct Debit 
payment method 

65.1% 60% 5.1%   

Compared to 62% for the same quarter last year 60% 

KPI 21 Percentage of 'major' 
planning applications 
determined within 13 weeks 

100.00% 65.00% 35.00%   

100% maintained 65.00% 

KPI 22 Percentage of 
planning 'minor' planning 
applications determined 
within 8 weeks 

97.00% 80.00% 17.00%   

Compared to 95% for the same quarter last year 80.00% 

KPI 23 Percentage of 'other' 
applications determined 
within 8 weeks 

100.00% 80.00% 20.00%   

100% maintained 80.00% 

KPI 24 Percentage of 
planning appeals dismissed 100.00% 70.00% 30.00%   

100% maintained 70.00% 

 
 

P
age 41



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Annual Report 2020/21 
 
LEAD MEMBER: Cllr John Kane, Chair of Overview & Scrutiny 

Committee 
LEAD OFFICER: Nicola Hartley, Head of Corporate Governance 

and Legal (Monitoring Officer) 
REPORT AUTHOR: Rose Blaney, Democratic Services Officer 

(Scrutiny) 
 
Why has this report come to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee?  
The Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2021/22 must be approved by 
the Committee before it can be presented to Council. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee are recommended to: 
 

a) Note the Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2021/22 
 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 In accordance with the Constitution of Copeland Borough Council 

(CBC) the Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC) must report 
annually to the Council on its work. 
 

1.2 The purpose of the report is to highlight the work of the Committee, 
explain how the scrutiny function of the Council operates and 
encourage wider participation from Council members and the public. 
 

1.3 The report will be going to Full Council on 5th July 2022. 
 
 

     2. CONCLUSION 
 
2.1 The Committee are asked to note the report.  

Page 43

Agenda Item 7



 

 
2.2 The Committee are also asked to help encourage more participation 

from members who are not on the Committee in future OSC work.  
 
 
 
Background Paper and Appendices: 
 
Appendix A – Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2020-2021

Page 44



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Annual Report 2021-2022 

 

Page 45



Page 2 of 14

2
Chair’s Forward 
 
I would like to start the introduction of the 2021-22 Overview and Scrutiny 
Annual Report by noting the difficulties that the Council as a whole have faced 
with the upcoming Local Government Reorganisation. It has been a period of 
uncertainty, with a lot of questions that still remained unanswered, but I am 
positive that Overview and Scrutiny have done the best that they could within 
the circumstances. 
 
We held twelve Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC) meetings from March 
2021 until April 2022. OSC had an average attendance of 66%, which is below the 
overall average attendance for member meetings for that period (75.1%). 
 
I would like to thank all the members of Overview and Scrutiny for their hard 
work and their willingness to adapt and improve. The past year has seen 
Overview and Scrutiny employ some new training and methods, such as informal 
meetings and the introduction of the Yearly Review Report, to improve our 
impact and involvement. While I know that we are still looking to improve 
further, the work done in the past year has seen an increase in performance and 
recommendations.  
 
I would also like to thank all the officers who have brought reports to Overview 
and Scrutiny over the last year for their hard work. And I would especially like to 
thank the Scrutiny Officer who has been a rock throughout the last year as Chair 
and has been extremely patient, understanding and the giver of guidance to the 
Committee. 
 
I look forward to seeing Overview and 
Scrutiny continue to improve over the 
upcoming year.  
 
  
 

Page 46



Page 3 of 14

3
 Table of Contents 
 
Introduction         Page 4 

2020-2021 Highlights        Page 5 

Full Council Referrals        Page 5
      
DFG Discretionary Payments       Page 6 

Social Inclusion Showcase: Law Centre     Page 6 

Other Highlights         Page 7 

Task & Finish Groups        Page 8 

Effective Digital Engagement       Page 8 

Social Media Policy Review       Page 9 

Health & Wellbeing North & South Copeland    Page 10 

Housing          Page 11 

Future Task & Finish Groups       Page 12 

Conclusion          Page 13 

Next Steps          Page 14 

Scrutiny Contact Details        Page 14 

 

Page 47



Page 4 of 14

4
1.0 Introduction 

1.1 Welcome to the 2021-22 Annual Report on the overview and scrutiny 
function of Copeland Borough Council (CBC). This report details the work of 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC). 

 
1.2 Scrutiny is one of the main checks and balances to the power of the 

Executive. The key roles of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee are: 
 

  Ensuring the Executive is accountable; this enables more 
transparent and effective decision making. This includes the power 
to ‘call-in’ a decision made by the Executive that has not yet been 
implemented. 

  Reviewing and developing policies; the Committee supports the 
development of effective policies and initiatives through policy 
review and development. 

  Ensuring the continuous improvement of Council Services; receiving 
quarterly performance and finance reports to ensure that the 
Council is performing to the best of its abilities for its residents. 

 
1.3 In 2021-22, the members of the Copeland Borough Council Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee, agreed at the Annual General Meeting, were: 
 

  Cllr John Kane   (Chair) 
  Cllr Felicity Wilson   (Deputy Chair) 
  Cllr James Date 
  Cllr Gemma Dinsdale 
  Cllr Gwynneth Everett 
  Cllr Joseph Ghayouba 
  Cllr Charles Maudling 
  Cllr Sam Meteer 
  Cllr Sam Pollen 
  Cllr Peter Tyson 
  Cllr Doug Wilson 

 
 

Page 48



Page 5 of 14

5
2.0 2021-2022 Highlights 
 
2.1 Full Council Referrals 
 
2.1.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee were asked by Full Council in 2021-

22 to review and investigate two recommendations. 
 
2.1.2 Full Council believed that OSC would be the best place for councillors to 

review, investigate and discuss the recommendations that had been made 
to Council in further detail and arrive at a conclusion that would be 
suitable for all. 

 
2.1.3 The first referral was to investigate whether or not Copeland should 

remain a member of the Industrial Alliance until 2023 when the new 
authority (Cumberland) comes into effect. The recommendation to Full 
Council was to discontinue membership.  

 
2.1.4 OSC met on 18th January 2022 and had invited the Chair and Secretary of 

the Industrial Alliance to the meeting so that they could have an open 
discussion as to whether to remain a member and pay the subscription fee. 

 
2.1.5 The OSC decision was taken back to Full Council for approval at an 

Extraordinary Meeting on 22nd February 2022. 
 
2.1.6 The second referral was to investigate and debate one of the 

recommendations brought to Full Council regarding Establishing the 
Industrial Solutions Hub (ISH) Company. The report and recommendations 
were in part two. 

 
2.1.7 OSC met on 3rd March 2022 and had invited the Copeland Solicitor, the 

Nuclear Projects and Programmes Manager, the ISH Programme Director 
and a solicitor from Burnetts to enable OSC to have a debate and receive 
all the necessary information to make an informed decision. 

 
2.1.8 The OSC decision was taken back to Full Council for approval on 15th March 

2022  
 
2.1.9 As a result of the debates and discussions by the Committee, the following 

outcomes from Full Council referrals were: 

Page 49



Page 6 of 14

6
o That Council be asked to agree with the recommendation for 

Copeland to continue to pay the subscription fee and remain a 
member of the Industrial Alliance until 2023, when it will be up to 
the new authority (Cumberland) to decide how to proceed. 

o That Council be asked to agree with the proposed revised 
Recommendation for Establishing the ISH Company. 

o Both recommendations made by OSC to Full Council were agreed 
and implemented. 

 
 

2.2 DFG Discretionary Payments 
 
2.2.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee were given a presentation on the 

Disabled Facilities Grants (DFG) Discretionary Payments from the Strategic 
Housing and Social Inclusion Manager on 8th July 2021.  

 
2.2.2 The Committee asked the Strategic Housing & Social Inclusion Manager 

and Housing Renewal Team Leader multiple questions focusing on the 
budget for DFGs, empty homes, recouping the cost (if and when it is 
necessary) and working with social housing providers. 

 
2.2.3 OSC were asked to support the initiative and recommend to the Executive 

that the Discretionary measures piloted be incorporated into the Disabled 
Facilities Grant Policy. 

 
2.2.4 The Committee agreed to support the DFG Discretionary Payments 

initiative and to recommend to the Executive that the Discretionary 
measures piloted be incorporated into the Disabled Facilities Grant Policy. 
The Chair took the recommendation to the Executive on 27th July 2022 
where the recommendations were approved by the Executive. 

 
 
2.3 Social Inclusion Showcase: Law Centre 
 
2.3.1 The Social Inclusion Showcase: Law Centre was presented to the 

Committee on 7th October 2021. 
 
2.3.2 As part of the ongoing review of the funding provided by CBC to Social 

Inclusion, OSC have received showcases from certain organisations that 

Page 50



Page 7 of 14

7
Copeland provide funding to. The Law Centre was the second presentation 
OSC received, after Citizens Advice had attended a previous OSC meeting. 

 
2.3.3 The Head of Strategic Housing and Social Inclusion gave OSC an overview 

of CBC’s position and the relationship with the Law Centre, detailing how 
CBC plan to move forward to help the most vulnerable in Copeland. The 
Head of the Cumbria Law Centre was also in attendance to provide a 
presentation on the work that the Law Centre do and help answer any 
questions that OSC had. 

 
2.3.4 There was a discussion surrounding the funding that the Law Centre 

receive from CBC and a request was made by OSC to have the Executive 
review the funding amount available for the Law Centre, alongside OSC 
agreeing with the initial recommendation to support the continued funding 
provision to the Law Centre. 

 
2.3.5 The report from OSC detailing the request for a review of the Law Centre 

funding was taken and heard by the Executive on 9th November 2021. 
 
2.3.6 The Committee agreed to support the continuation of providing the Law 

Centre with Funding and for the available funding to be reviewed. The 
Executive agreed to continue the support of the Law Centre and to 
increase the funding provided to the Law Centre by CBC from £5,000 to 
£20,000 for the next two years (2023). 

 
 
2.4 Other Highlights  
 
2.4.1 There were numerous other reports and presentations which came to OSC 

in 2021/22, where OSC were able to hear from officers and have 
discussions around topics which would help improve CBC. 

 
2.4.2 These reports included: 

o Final reports from Task & Finish Groups 
o Quarterly Finance and Performance Plans 
o Footway Lighting Report 
o Fleet Renewal Presentation and Update 
o Business Rates – Discretionary Rate Relief Policy Update 
o Surveillance Equipment Report 
o Annual Feedback Summary 

Page 51



Page 8 of 14

8
 
2.4.3 The majority of reports highlighted above only came with a 

recommendation for OSC to note the report. However, by coming to OSC, 
it allowed the members the opportunity to make comments and highlight 
any concerns, which could then be provided to the Executive before any 
policies or updates were implemented. 

 
2.4.4 The other main highlight for OSC was that OSC took the opportunity to 

create a new annual report, the Yearly Review, in an aim to reflect and 
improve on their own performance. 

 
2.4.5 The first Yearly Review report was provided to OSC on 2nd December 2021 

and detailed all of the main achievements made by OSC from May 2021 
until November 2022. It also highlighted: 

o Number of recommendations by OSC  
o Outcomes of those recommendations 
o Responses from the Executive following the OSC reports 
o Ways Forward 

 
2.4.6 The outcome was that OSC agreed with the Ways Forward suggested 

within the Yearly review and will continue to make ongoing improvements. 
 
 

3.0 Task & Finish Groups 
 
3.0.1 The Task & Finish Groups scheduled to start in 2021 and continue into 

2022 were agreed at an informal OSC meeting in February 2021.  
 
3.1 Effective Digital Engagement 
 
3.1.1 Effective Digital Engagement Group was established due to a 2019 internal 

audit review recommendation to help improve OSC’s interaction with the 
public via digital engagement.  It was recommended that the best way to 
complete the audit recommendation was to create a Task & Finish Group. 

 
3.1.2 Due to the Covid-19 pandemic, no progress was made in 2020 and the 

recommendation was extended until Jan 2022. 
 
3.1.3 The Task & Finish Group was established in September 2021. The group 

consisted of Councillors Russell Studholme, Jeanette Forster and Gwynneth 

Page 52



Page 9 of 14

9
Everett. Councillor Russell Studholme was chosen as the Chair of the 
Effective Digital Engagement Task & Finish Group. 

 
 
3.1.4 The group had five meetings before presenting the final report to OSC on 

2nd December 2021. OSC agreed with the recommendations and forwarded 
them on to the Executive for final approval before being implemented. 

 
3.1.5 The recommendations were: 

a) To create a web page on the CBC website specifically for OSC, to 
help OSC engage more effectively with the public.  
b) To have as attachments on the web page:  

  OSC Toolkit  
  Call-In and Call for Action information  

c) To have the Scrutiny Officer trained by the Communications Team 
to be the administrator for the OSC web page.  
d) To have a brief review of the information available on the website 
every six months to ensure content is up to date.  
e) To work with the Communications Team and use their expertise 
to ensure that the wording used is beneficial towards effective 
digital engagement. 

 
3.1.8 The recommendations were presented to the Executive on 14th December 

2021. The Executive agreed with the recommendations but noted that 
before the information be added to the website, it needed to be given 
Corporate Leadership Team (CLT) approval. 

 
3.1.9 At the time of writing this report, recommendations A, B, C and D have 

been completed, with recommendation E to be completed after six 
months. 

 
3.2 Social Media Policy Review 
 
3.2.1 Social Media Policy Review was created in 2021 as, under Policy 

Monitoring within the current Social Media Guidance and Acceptable Use 
Policy (2019), it is suggested that the policy should be reviewed and 
updated every two years. It has been two years since a review was 
completed by the Information Governance Officer and four years since a 
review through a Task & Finish Group. 

 

Page 53



Page 10 of 14

10
3.2.2 The group consisted of Councillors Jeffrey Hailes, Jeanette Forster and 

Linda Jones-Bulman. Councillor Jeffrey Hailes was chosen as the Chair of 
the Social Media Policy Review Task & Finish Group. 

 
3.2.3 The group had three meetings before presenting the final report to OSC on 

2nd December 2021. OSC agreed with the recommendations and forwarded 
them on to the Executive for final approval before being implemented. 

 
3.2.4 The recommendations within the report included multiple changes to the 

policy. A recommendation was also made to have training be available, 
upon request, with the Communications Team. 

 
3.2.6 The recommendations were presented to the Executive on 14th December 

2021. Following a discussion between the Executive, and with advice from 
the Solicitor, the Social Media Policy Review Task & Finish Group report 
was referred to the Standards and Ethics Committee for their 
consideration. 

 
3.2.7 The report was heard by the Standards and Ethics Committee on 17th 

February 2022. With a unanimous vote, the Committee voted to agree to 
recommend to Council the proposed changes to the policy. 

 
3.2.8 The Social Media Policy Review Task & Finish Group report will now be 

presented to council at the next appropriate meeting. 
 
3. 3 Health & Wellbeing North & South Copeland 
 
3.3.1 There have been numerous meetings of the two Task & Finish Groups 

throughout 2021. 
 
3.3.2 It was decided during the initial scoping meeting that these Task & Finish 

Groups will take place over a 12-month period. 
 
3.3.3 Membership was confirmed at the first meeting for the North Copeland 

Group: 
 

  Councillor Gwynneth Everett 
  Councillor Jeanette Forster 
  Councillor Linda Jones-Bulman 
  Councillor John Kane 

Page 54



Page 11 of 14

11
 
3.3.4 Councillor John Kane was confirmed as the Chair of the Health & Wellbeing 

North Copeland Task & Finish Group. His appointment of Chair of the 
group had been initially proposed during an OSC meeting. 

 
3.3.5 Membership was confirmed at the first meeting for the South Copeland 

Group: 
 

  Councillor James Date 
  Councillor Peter Tyson 
  Councillor Doug Wilson  
  Councillor Felicity Wilson  

 
3.3.6 Councillor Felicity Wilson was confirmed as the Chair of the Health & 

Wellbeing South Copeland Task & Finish Group. Her appointment of Chair 
of the group had been initially proposed during an OSC meeting. 

 
3.3.7 After a few months of meeting, it was initially requested that the scopes be 

re-drafted to focus more on Children and Mental Health, to allow members 
a chance to focus specifically on these issues. 

 
3.3.8 In February 2022, it was decided by members of both committees, due to 

other commitments and pressures, that both Task & Finish Groups be put 
on hold until a review can be had after the May 2022 elections. 

 
3.4 Housing 
 
3.4.1 There have been four meetings of the Housing Task & Finish Group (at the 

time of writing this report). 
 
3.4.2 The first two meetings resulted in the Housing Complaints Guidance being 

created. The guidance was presented to OSC on 8th July 2021 with a 
recommendation for it to be circulated to all councillors. This was 
highlighted within the 2020-21 OSC Annual Report (May 2021) as 
something the Group were aiming to achieve. The vote by OSC was 
unanimous and the Guidance was then forwarded to all councillors on 15th 
July 2021. 

 
3.4.3 The third meeting, in March 2022 was to establish possible ideas for a 

scope, with the fourth meeting organised for April to have officers attend 

Page 55



Page 12 of 14

12
to provide further information about how the Housing Task & Finish Group 
could help and move forward. 

 
3.4.3 Those interested in membership for the group included: 
 

  Councillor James Date 
  Councillor Gemma Dinsdale 
  Councillor Jeanette Forster 
  Councillor Mike Hawkins  
  Councillor Ged McGrath 
  Councillor Russell Studholme 
  Councillor Doug Wilson 
 
Councillor Sam Pollen added his name to the membership list in 2022. 

 
3.4.4 Councillor Mike Hawkins was confirmed as the Chair of the Housing Task & 

Finish Group.  
 
3.4.5 The next steps for the Housing Task & Finish Group is to meet and confirm 

the scope of the group and how they wish to move forward. 
 
3.5 Future Task & Finish Groups 
 
3.5.1 There is one ongoing Task & Finish Group and one possible Task & Finish 

Group that are scheduled to take place later this year. 
 

  Housing 
  Social Inclusion 

 
3.5.2 The Housing Task & Finish Group are currently investigating what topic 

they would like to focus on for the scope. Once a decision has been made, 
the group will meet to finalise the scope. 

 
3.5.3 Once the scope has been agreed, the Housing Task & Finish Group will 

move forward and aim to have a report completed within their designated 
timeframe (which will be confirmed at the scoping meeting). 

 
3.5.4 OSC have requested a review be undertaken on how to help the most 

vulnerable within Copeland. It was suggested that this might be best 
undertaken as a Task & Finish Group. 

Page 56



Page 13 of 14

13
 
3.5.5 Following a conversation with the Head of Strategic Housing and Social 

Inclusion and the Social Inclusion and Community Resilience Team Leader, 
it was decided that the Team Leader would provide the Housing Task & 
Finish Group with a presentation (as it links in with the topic the group are 
investigating). The group will then provide OSC with a recommendation as 
to whether it should be a separate Task & Finish Group or remain within 
Housing. 

 
3.5.6 Task & Finish Groups can be requested throughout the year and can be put 

on the Task & Finish Group Future Work Programme. 
 
 

4.0 Conclusion  
 
4.1 The primary purpose of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee is to hold 

the Executive to account and act as a critical friend and the committee has 
fulfilled this role throughout the past year. The Committee has had a 
positive impact on the community it serves and is excited for the future. 

 
4.2 Overview and Scrutiny will continue to be critical during the 2022-23 year, 

with the Shadow Authority in place and Vesting Day approaching April 
2023. 

 
4.3 The committee can maintain oversight on matters relating to council 

finances and act as a conduit for community experiences. To this end, the 
committee shall be hoping to engage with a wide array of the public and 
incorporate their questions and concerns into their work programme. The 
committee are hoping that this engagement will be improved this year due 
to the work undertake by the Effective Digital Engagement Task & Finish 
Group. 

 
4.4 The committee feel that, by working together with the Executive, they can 

help the Copeland community reach it’s highest potential. 
 
 
 
 

Page 57



Page 14 of 14

14
5.0 Next Steps 
 
5.1 OSC are looking to continually improve themselves, their performance and 

their engagement. This will be done through numerous steps including: 
 

  Mandatory Training 
  Reaffirming the responsibilities for not only members of OSC but OSC as a 

whole 
  General public engagement 
  Working effectively with the Executive 
  Better engagement with councillors not on OSC 

 
5.2 This committee are also looking to improve relations throughout Copeland. 

A suggestion for this has been to organise a “Tour of Copeland”. The aim of 
this will be to take councillors around the Borough to allow all councillors 
an opportunity to explore the Borough that they are representing and not 
just the areas that they were elected to represent. This would also serve as 
a chance for councillors to interact regardless of party politics. 

 
5.3 The Committee will continue to review the Task & Finish Groups that are 

proposed by members, officers, and members of the public. 
 
5.4 The Committee are looking forward to helping Copeland transition into a 

new normal following the elections to the Shadow Authority and as we 
move towards Vesting Day. 

 
 
 
 

 Scrutiny Contact Details  
 
 Rose Blaney 
 Democratic Services Officer (Scrutiny) 
 07385 362773 
 Scrutiny@Copeland.gov.uk

Page 58

mailto:Scrutiny@copeland.gov.uk


                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     
Outside Bodies Annual Report 2021-22 
 
EXECUTIVE MEMBER: Cllr David Moore, Portfolio Holder for Nuclear and 

Corporate Services 
LEAD OFFICER: Nicola Hartley, Head of Corporate Governance and 

Legal (Monitoring Officer) 
REPORT AUTHOR: Rose Blaney, Democratic Services Officer (Scrutiny) 

 
WHY HAS THIS REPORT COME TO THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE? 
 
This report provides copies and an analysis and overview of the annual reports 
received by Council Members representing the Council on Outside Bodies 
during 2021/22. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee are recommended to: 
 

(a) Consider and note the Outside Bodies annual review reports received 
and any recommendations to Full Council on the detail provided; and 

(b) Identify any changes to the reporting process and feedback forms that 
could assist Members in their role and forward any subsequent 
recommendations to Full Council. 

 
 
1.0 INTRODUCTION 

 
1.1 The Outside Bodies Representation List is reviewed and agreed annually 

by Full Council and identifies both Member Champions and Members on 
Outside Bodies. This report relates to representation for the 2021/22 
municipal year. 
 

1.2 Members formally allocated to outside body representation are 
expected to provide an annual feedback report. Each year these reports 
are considered by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC) to 
acknowledge where and how Members have been active with their 

Page 59

Agenda Item 8



Outside Bodies. Members use existing mechanisms, mainly linked to 
officers, to feed any actions or issues into the council. 
 

1.3 Members representing the Council on Outside Bodies have a 
responsibility to report actions, issues, and risks to ensure required 
activity is undertaken by the Council. Any necessary concerns will then 
be addressed, and any appropriate mitigating action taken. A standard 
summary feedback form template is in place for Member 
representatives to use following a meeting that can then be circulated to 
the relevant officers and Members for follow up information, 
communication, and action. 

 
2.0 FEEDBACK RECEIVED 
 
2.1 The responses from Outside Body Member representatives are attached 

at Appendix A and responses from Member Champions are attached at 
Appendix B.  The feedback received includes 30 Member 
representatives, 71% of Outside Bodies on the list, and 7 Member 
Champions, 64% of Member Champions on the list. As was evidenced in 
last year’s responses, Members have been active in their Outside Bodies 
during the past year. They continue to work with officers and use 
existing mechanisms, including circulating notes and minutes of 
meetings attended to feed issues into the Council.   

 
2.2 As highlighted last year several Outside Bodies publish their papers 

online and are therefore available to Members and officers to access e.g. 
Copeland Community Fund. 

 
2.3 A number of key partnerships are reported on through the Portfolio 

reports to Full Council and using the quarterly performance 
management and reporting framework. 

 
2.4 Seven Member Champions have reported on their annual activities:  

Armed Forces, Anti-Social Behaviour, SME, Older Persons, Young People 
and Homelessness.  This annual reporting is not obligatory and those 
received are attached at Appendix B.   

 
 

Page 60



2.5 Champions also use opportunities throughout the year to report through 
standard communication mechanisms on issues and activities.  Some 
Champions take the opportunity to meet with staff and key partners 
regularly and others are active Members of projects. There are six 
reports within Appendix B to highlight the value of the champion role to 
the Council and delivery of our priorities in this area.  

 
2.6 The Covid-19 pandemic continues to influence the frequency of 

meetings of Outside Bodies, and this should be taken into account when 
viewing the responses from Members. 

 
2.7 As mentioned above in 2.6, this in effect has meant that some Outside 

Bodies have had no meetings and others, while meetings have 
happened, circumstances have meant that members were unable to 
attend. 

 
2.8 There are also some Champion roles that were impacted by Covid-19. 

There was one councillor who was unable to attend meetings due to 
Covid-19. As they informed the Scrutiny Officer of this, they have been 
included within the ‘returned’ statistics. 

 
2.9 Of those Outside Bodies and Champions that were unable to have 

meetings/conduct their role, but did want to provide some extra 
information regarding those Outside Bodies and Champion roles these 
are shown in Appendix C. 

 
3.0 COMMENT REVIEWS 
 
3.1 Within four of the returned Outside Bodies/Champion reports, there 

were suggestions that a review of membership should be conducted. 
 
3.2 Democracy & Engagement Champion 
 
3.2.1 The Democracy and Engagement Champion noted that there had 

previously been a dedicated officer to work with the Champion and work 
with external groups and stakeholders. This has been impacted by the 
workload increase for officers due to LGR. 

 

Page 61



3.2.2 The question has been asked as to whether the Champion role should be 
suspended until staff capacity is available or if the Champion should be 
suspended for the rest of the year. 

 
3.3 The Pensions Forum 
 
3.3.1 The Pensions Forum meetings are attended by the Chief Financial 

Officer, with reports being presented to members should there be any 
necessary information. 

 
3.3.2 The question has been asked as to whether member representation 

within the Outside Bodies list is still required, or whether it should be 
removed from the list. 

 
3.4 West Cumbria Site Stakeholder Group (WCSSG) 
 
3.4.1 It was queried by Councillor Morgan, when returning his Outside Bodies 

report for WCSSG Spent Fuel Management and Nuclear Materials 
Working Group, that having three members of Copeland be represented 
on the group be two too many. That only one member would be more 
beneficial, especially with all the work that the Strategic Nuclear Energy 
Board (SNEB) already conduct. 

 
3.4.2 The other two Copeland members on this working group did not provide 

the same feedback. They both did agree that Copeland should remain a 
member of the Outside Body. 

 
3.4.3 There is the WCSSG and five WCSSG working groups. The WCSSG has 

three members appointed to represent the Council. Three of the 
working groups have three members appointed and two have two 
members appointed to represent the Council. 

 
3.4.3 Of the 16 members appointed across the 6 WCSSG Outside Bodies only 8 

members returned Outside Bodies Reports.  
 
3.5 Lake District National Park Authority (LDNP) 
 
3.5.1 Councillor Branney requested more importance be placed upon 

interaction with the LDNP and increase interaction.  
 

Page 62



3.5.2 It was noted that the LDNP was not mentioned at the “Open for 
Business” conference in March 2022, which could be considered a 
missed opportunity for tourism. Especially with the World Heritage 
designation. 

 
3.6 OSC are being asked with this report to note any comments and review 

any possible changes. Opinions regarding the above comments will be 
included in the report to Full Council. 

 
 
4.0 CONCLUSIONS 
 
4.1 The purpose of the annual review report is to ensure Members are able 

at least once a year to reflect and report on their activity highlighting 
any issues.  It is also a mechanism for Members to be held to account; if 
Copeland Borough Council is not represented on the Outside Bodies that 
Members are allocated to, it would disenfranchise Copeland residents. 

 
4.2 In summary, the annual reporting for 2021/22 has been 70%, less than 

2020/22 at 81%, more than the 52% in 2019/20 and just over a third 
more than the 40% response from the previous year. 

 
4.3 This report is provided to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee for 

consideration and comment.  Any comment and/or recommendations 
for improvement will be taken to the next meeting of Full Council. 

 
 
List of Appendices  
 
Appendix A – Outside Bodies Feedback Forms received 
Appendix B – Member Champion Feedback Forms received 
Appendix C – Outside Bodies & Member Champion Feedback Forms received 

with no meetings  
Appendix D – Agreed Outside Bodies List 2021/22 

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions

Annual Feedback Form 2021/2022

Name of Councillor(s):

Name of Outside Body: o5S6r A'uK

Frequency of meetings:

Number of meetings attended in 2021/22: AO

Key activities undertaken in 2021/22 including type and any feedback given:

Q ii/fa-vi-frnt; Ya ^r(i5le.

What were the key outcomes and issues from your representation on this
Outside Body for the Council and Copeland residents in 2021/22:

Appendix A

Page 65



Please confirm if the outside body you represent CBC on pays or contributes 
to your travel and any other costs

Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation 
to be carried forward into 2022/23?

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation 
on this outside body

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position:

Signed: Dated:

Please email completed form to Rose Blaney, Scrutiny Officer, by 
Wednesday, 13th April 2022.

Page 66



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions

Annual Feedback Form 2021/2022

Name of Councillor(s): HUGH

Name of Outside Body:

Frequency of meetings:

Number of meetings attended in 2021/22:
A fYMXTUfte OF ATTEisIdES/OuXTOAL. (tFLE'PHoNE) «.
Key activities undertaken in 2021/22 including type and any feedback given:

N . P Author ctV . G
3) E V EkO P |V\ £ KIT C o NJTR.0£(PCA/MCp ( 
PA«-K -STPATEcy ^V/SlOt4 g '

Eis)rG£TS>AEE PuA-<i u_

x/OLUATTtERS MEEiTHNC, | 
V C u.u sTT EE Q. i si G> 'A'
PWCLEA.Q TAT Afx) ISH I 
iHEST TITTT V E ACEA I

What were the key outcomes and issues from your representation on this
Outside Body for the Council and Copeland residents in 2021/22:

AT THE COPF_kAt<C> ''OPEV<1 FT& FSOSisJESSES'■ COMriSTEMCE T Ik-HAR; 
A wEuu. A“FV^Kg)El> FUNCTio^, AST* AfOoTHECC. tT$T OPPoST C :0~ Y TO 
jTv'EACjP TAftt'Si'P „ JOlT SiSGuE P,£E~rc THE lAU-t 
3><STr.icT MATlPMAk NOixj Hl.TH WPACTi i AGO. (V A G <= T>£Si G^ATi

Jio fHiunio.xl-t- VlSrroPtS; To THE GjUMT/. C£NTfeA‘
kAVCES EuRsTfc4<2> '■'Hu A'EA^AS TTt> ucov-.^g TO TASptTA<?sC 

V/srrofts of -tooqist PareMHA^ Fo/2.
ATQAenoNi ^ispite ^/3 oF Rc^oogh

/Kl THE NATISNiAG N.TVA NMUtiJf t?UA^Y C'CAST
jv^CC-fslTA-tfoS UAM.es UAMtikjG i cyCLJ^G Pc" OS) < f AH • 

0 PPoftTu si A y G\j(=?QSiGHT Oft. ~i>o-uiAeiMTX Pcuic,/ g

Page 67



Please confirm if the outside body you represent CBC on pays or contributes 
to your travel and any other costs

Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation 
to be carried forward into 2022/23?

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation 
on this outside body

X/£S Um hoot 'dooST, AS

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position:

WE A\OS"T pfXEPAQfc FoA. THE ( <V\ZLa.GT OP' GCxJEAkK

Kk.\J/t.vW <j,xJ Akfc. ooft. iQ.fc.vS i S ESPEoAfcuv THOSE kJVoUG I <\j 

N AncxAAfc PA-C\<. AmjS uSEUEkOjP CukTU (XA<-? tE CO ivj C W o

U Eo/2. AESi^iTNT^ oF -n(E gufelWH AS A UHOiX.

s«ned: +W Dated: 5 APfe,u
Please email completed form to Rose Blaney, Scrutiny Officer, by 
Wednesday, 13th April 2022.

Page 68



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions

Annual Feedback Form 2021/2022

Name of Councillor(s): MUC H /S CA'xjiX/t y

Name of Outside Body: 0t„ 1Z ,z  , /t ,
KIqyi^ ■

Frequency of meetings:

Number of meetings attended in 2021/22: y© zy_ .

Key activities undertaken in 2021/22 including type and any feedback given:

What were the key outcomes and issues from your representation on this
Outside Body for the Council and Copeland residents in 2021/22:

Page 69



Please confirm if the outside body you represent CBC on pays or contributes 
to your travel and any other costs

Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation 
to be carried forward into 2022/23?

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation 
on this outside body

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position:

Signed: Dated:

Please email completed form to Rose Blaney, Scrutiny Officer, by
Wednesday, 13th April 2022.

Page 70



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions

Annual Feedback Form 2021/2022

Name of Councillor(s): MH

Name of Outside Body:
TdujM — lylCDfZ.

Frequency of meetings: <2 S' l

Number of meetings attended in 2021/22: S2J

Key activities undertaken in 2021/22 including type and any feedback given:

What were the key outcomes and issues from your representation on this
Outside Body for the Council and Copeland residents in 2021/22:

Page 71



Please confirm if the outside body you represent CBC on pays or contributes 
to your travel and any other costs

Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation 
to be carried forward into 2022/23?

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation 
on this outside body

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position:

Signed: tfuaLy Dated: 6> 2

Please email completed form to Rose Blaney, Scrutiny Officer, by
Wednesday, 13th April 2022.

Page 72



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions 

Annual Feedback Form 2021/22 

 

 

 

 

 
Frequency of meetings: Quarterly   
 
Number of meetings attended in 2021/22: 23/3/21, 10/8/21, 8/3/22  

Reporting activities undertaken in 2021/22 including type and where feedback given: 

 

 

 
 
 
What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2021/22: 
 
 

 

 

 

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs        

No Costs Involved 

Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2022/23? 

         

 

 

 

 

Name of Councillor(s): Gwynneth Everett

Name of Outside Body:  Regeneration North East Copeland

Discussion on LGR, Access to Ennerdale, Cleator Moor Town deal, reports from Cleator TC, 
Lamplugh PC. Ennerdale & Kinniside PC, Arlecdon and Frizington PC, Weddicar PC and from 
Cumbria CC and Phoenix Youth Project who have clubs in Cleator Moor and Frizington.

Further news of the outcomes from the Town Deal and news from the parishes.

Page 73



 

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body     

Yes 

 

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Signed:  GA Everett                            Dated:   30/3/2022       

            

Please email completed form to Rose Blaney Scrutiny Officer by Wednesday  

13 April 2022           
     

Page 74



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions 

Annual Feedback Form 2021/22 

 

 

 

 

 
Frequency of meetings:  Quarterly  
 
Number of meetings attended in 2021/22: 15/9/21, 15/12/21, 16/3/22  

Reporting activities undertaken in 2021/22 including type and where feedback given: 

 

 

 
 
 
What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2021/22: 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs        

 

 

 

 

Name of Councillor(s):  Cllr Gwynneth Everett

Name of Outside Body:  WCSSG Risk and Hazard Reduction and waste Management 
Working Group

Kept up to date with any changes to the programme timeline identified in Sellafield plan.  To 
provide a forum for open and honest dialogue.  To provide the opportunity to question the NDA 
and Sellafield Ltd on matters relevant to areas of Risk and Hazard reduction and waste 
management. Also, to bring concerns of residents to the Forum.

NDA Strategy 4 debate and discussion. Progress on Magnox, Swarf Storage Silo and regular 
updates.  Legacy ponds update.  Risk Management Framework and overall profile of site nuclear 
safety.  Update from the integrated Waste Management Programme at Sellafield Ltd.  High level 
waste plants overview.  Update on Cumbria Local Resilience Forum and MSSS

No costs involved

Page 75



Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2022/23? 

         

 

 

 

 

 

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body    Yes 

 

 

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Signed:  GA Everett                            Dated:     30 March 2022    

            

Please email completed form to Rose Blaney, Scrutiny Officer, by Wednesday, 

 13th April  2022.          
        

Topics for future discussion include continued updates on legacy ponds, magnox storage, pile fuel 
storage, High level waste plants, removal of stacks, LLWR, RWM

Page 76



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions 

Annual Feedback Form 2021/2022 

 

 

 

 

 
Frequency of meetings:   Quarterly 
 
Number of meetings attended in 2021/22: 4 

Key activities undertaken in 2021/22 including type and any feedback given: 

 

 

 
 
 
What were the key outcomes and issues from your representation on this 
Outside Body for the Council and Copeland residents in 2021/22: 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name of Councillor(s): John Kane

Name of Outside Body:  WCSSG Spend Fuel Management

Due to Covid impact the end date for reprocessing is delayed until later this year.

Presentations and updates on the business.

Both Virtual and In-Person meetings

Page 77



Please confirm if the outside body you represent CBC on pays or contributes 
to your travel and any other costs        

 

 

 

 

Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation 
to be carried forward into 2022/23? 

         

 

 

 

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation 
on this outside body     

Yes 

 

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position: 

 

 

 

 

Signed:  JKane                          Dated:         19.04.22 

Please email completed form to Rose Blaney, Scrutiny Officer, by 
Wednesday, 16th March 2022.        
          

Review the date and progress of reprocessing.

N/A

Page 78



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions 

Annual Feedback Form 2021/2022 

 

 

 

 

 
Frequency of meetings:  4per annum.  
 
Number of meetings attended in 2021/22: One. 

Key activities undertaken in 2021/22 including type and any feedback given: 

 

 

 
 
 
What were the key outcomes and issues from your representation on this 
Outside Body for the Council and Copeland residents in 2021/22: 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name of Councillor(s): Michael McVeigh

Name of Outside Body:  Industrial alliance.

Research needed on involvement from APPG, All party parliamentary group, research ongoing.

First meeting transferred from Portfolio holder, ongoing exercise.

Page 79



Please confirm if the outside body you represent CBC on pays or contributes 
to your travel and any other costs        

 

 

 

 

Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation 
to be carried forward into 2022/23? 

         

 

Membership established and will participate in future meetings.. 

 

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation 
on this outside body     

YES. 

 

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position: 

The Alliance had been subject to determination of Future membership it was 
agreed we will continue with Membership. 

 

 

 

Signed: M A McVeigh                           Dated:27-3-2022          

Membership established and will participate in future meetings.

Page 80



Please email completed form to Rose Blaney, Scrutiny Officer, by 
Wednesday, 13th April 2022.        
          

Page 81



This page is intentionally left blank



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions 

Annual Feedback Form 2021/2022 

 

 

 

 

 
Frequency of meetings:  Ad Hoc due to Covid  
 
Number of meetings attended in 2021/22:  

Key activities undertaken in 2021/22 including type and any feedback given: 

 

 

 
 
 
What were the key outcomes and issues from your representation on this 
Outside Body for the Council and Copeland residents in 2021/22: 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name of Councillor(s): Councillor David Moore 

Name of Outside Body:  Cumbria Community Foundation

Grants are distributed throughout Copeland and Allerdale by the West Cumbria Grants 
Panel including funding provided by Sellafield 

The role is that of a trustee which has responsibility for overseeing a range of funds that 
are invested with the foundation and are distributed in line with the donations guidance   

Page 83



Please confirm if the outside body you represent CBC on pays or contributes 
to your travel and any other costs        

 

 

 

 

Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation 
to be carried forward into 2022/23? 

         

 

 

 

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation 
on this outside body     

Yes  

 

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position: 

Trustee  

 

Signed:   Dated: 17 February 2022         

Please email completed form to Rose Blaney, Scrutiny Officer, by 
Wednesday, 13th April 2022.        
          

The involved in distributing a range of funds increases yearly 

No

Page 84



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions 

Annual Feedback Form 2021/2022 

 

 

 

 

 
Frequency of meetings:  Usually Quarterly but only 3 meetings have taken 
place this year plus 1 workshop  
 
Number of meetings attended in 2021/22: 3 plus workshop 

Key activities undertaken in 2021/22 including type and any feedback given: 

 

 

 
 
 
What were the key outcomes and issues from your representation on this 
Outside Body for the Council and Copeland residents in 2021/22: 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name of Councillor(s): Councillor David Moore

Name of Outside Body:  Copeland Community Fund 

The Fund continues to support community groups to develop and deliver community 
projects across Copeland. As the Covid-19 Pandemic continued throughout 2021-22, the 
Funds resources both financially and within the team were utilised to provide the 
required support to the community; whilst processing reports and making over £1,2M 
Grant Payments to community groups. The Fund team provided reassurances and 
support to grantees as they adapted their projects to address on-going Covid-19 
restrictions and recovery needs of the community. They also worked with other CBC 
colleagues and the Resilience Group to support on-going mapping exercises to help 
support the development of both West Cumbria Mental Health Partnership and Aging 
Well Partnership, in efforts to support a more collaborative ethos and delivery method 
within the multi-sector partnerships. Within the Community Resilience Grants the Fund 
contributed £2,000 of food vouchers to community response groups to distribute to 
those in need of emergency food; supported a hospital focused ‘Music Medicine’ project 
and £2,000 on Christmas appeals projects to provide books and toys to children who 
would have otherwise gone without. 

Copeland Community Fund board comprises of representatives from CBC, CCC, LLWR, 
NDA and independent members. During 2021-22 Copeland Community Fund committed 
grants to 29 new projects: 6 Small Grants, 9 Large Grants, 7 Development Grants, 7 
Community Resilience Grants, and provided 2 Annual endowments. Committing over 
£1.6M and attracting over £3.5M of match funding into the area. 

Page 85



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Please confirm if the outside body you represent CBC on pays or contributes 
to your travel and any other costs        

 

 

Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation 
to be carried forward into 2022/23? 

         

 

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation 
on this outside body     

Yes  

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position: 

Signed:   Dated:  12 April 2022         

Please email completed form to Rose Blaney, Scrutiny Officer, by 
Wednesday, 13th April 2022.        
          

No

Through the animation work delivered by Copeland Community Fund, over 75 
organisations have been supported. 

Further, the Fund team continue to facilitate, convene and chair quarterly ‘Copeland 
Partners Forum’ and ‘Cumbria Funders Forum’ meetings to encourage and promote 
collaboration across funders and development organisations to benefit those 
organisations offering community support both within Copeland and West Cumbria. 
Together with the support offered by the Fund Team, Cumbria CVS was commissioned to 
provide 1:1 Governance support and to deliver a Funding Fair for West Cumbria:

 4 groups have been given governance support (ongoing)
 17 funders/support organisations were represented at the West Cumbria Funding 

fair
 46 groups attended the West Cumbria Funding fair
 17 of the groups represented made enquiries to Copeland Community Fund

Page 86



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions 

Annual Feedback Form 2021/2022 

 

 

 

 

 
Frequency of meetings:  Quarterly  
 
Number of meetings attended in 2021/22: 4 

Key activities undertaken in 2021/22 including type and any feedback given: 

 

 

 
 
 
What were the key outcomes and issues from your representation on this 
Outside Body for the Council and Copeland residents in 2021/22: 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name of Councillor(s): Councillor David Moore

Name of Outside Body:  NuLeaf

I have had input on all aspects of the work as these are all relevant to waste stored at 
Sellafield and LLWR and materials that may come in the future.  NuLeaF are also assisting 
local authorities interested in GDF

NuLeaF advises local authorities on all aspects of nuclear legacy and on GDF.  I have 
circulated to all members the Monthly update Newsletter 

Page 87



Please confirm if the outside body you represent CBC on pays or contributes 
to your travel and any other costs        

 

 

 

 

Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation 
to be carried forward into 2022/23? 

         

 

 

 

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation 
on this outside body     

Yes 

 

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position: 

I am currently the Vice-Chair  

 

Signed:   Dated:  17 February 2022         

Please email completed form to Rose Blaney, Scrutiny Officer, by 
Wednesday, 13th April 2022.        
          

All aspects of the work will continue over a long period 

No

Page 88



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions

Annual Feedback Form 2021/2022

Name of Councillor(s): Steven Morgan

Name of Outside Body: Cumbria Strategic Waste Partnership

Frequency of meetings: Quarterly

Number of meetings attended in 2021/22: 3

Key activities undertaken in 2021/22 including type and any feedback given:

Teams meetings of all District waste management teams. Reviewed County plans and possible 
Government changes to waste handling, minimization and recycling. Discussed issues with 
contractors. Conducted a tour of facilities in Carlisle for sorting and recycling.

What were the key outcomes and issues from your representation on this 
Outside Body for the Council and Copeland residents in 2021/22:

Agreement on County wide plans.

Debate over waste management after |LGR implementation

Page 89



Please confirm if the outside body you represent CBC on pays or contributes 
to your travel and any other costs

No but expect officers to file for mileage reimbursement if meetings resume in Carlisle.

Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation 
to be carried forward into 2022/23?

Inconsistent district policies on recycling.

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation 
on this outside body 

absolutely

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position:

Signed: —• Dated:

Please email completed form to Rose Blaney, Scrutiny Officer, by 
Wednesday, 13th April 2022.

Page 90



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions

Annual Feedback Form 2021/2022

Name of Councillor(s): Steven Morgan

Name of Outside Body: West Cumberland Hospital Stakeholders Group

Frequency of meetings: quarterly

Number of meetings attended in 2021/22: 3

Key activities undertaken in 2021/22 including type and any feedback given:

Review of Hospital development plans and pressures on the hospital due to Covid.

Supplemental discussions by telephone with Board of Governors leaders discussing medical
school issues.

What were the key outcomes and issues from your representation on this
Outside Body for the Council and Copeland residents in 2021/22:

An informed public.

Announced decision to continue new construction at the Hospital to complete the long term plan.

Page 91



Please confirm if the outside body you represent CBC on pays or contributes 
to your travel and any other costs

No. meetings held by Teams video conference.

Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation 
to be carried forward into 2022/23?

Pressure on the hospital by Covid is diminishing. Recruiting continues to be challenging 
throughout the NHS. The new Cancer Centre in Carlisle run by NHS Newcastle is now in operation 
and providing support for West Cumbrians.

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation 
on this outside body

yes

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position:

Signed: Dated:

Please email completed form to Rose Blaney, Scrutiny Officer, by
Wednesday, 13th April 2022.

Page 92



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions

Annual Feedback Form 2021/2022

Name of Councillor(s): Steven Morgan

Name of Outside Body: WCSSG spent fuel Mgt & Nuclear Materials working 
group

Frequency of meetings: quarterly

Number of meetings attended in 2021/22: 2

Key activities undertaken in 2021/22 including type and any feedback given:

Review of progress made at Sellafield.

What were the key outcomes and issues from your representation on this
Outside Body for the Council and Copeland residents in 2021/22:

Informed Copeland Council

Page 93



Please confirm if the outside body you represent CBC on pays or contributes 
to your travel and any other costs

no

Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation 
to be carried forward into 2022/23?

This group is redundant to other forums including our SNEB and our planning process.

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation 
on this outside body yes but only one member

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position:

Signed: Dated: Z2.

Please email completed form to Rose Blaney, Scrutiny Officer, by 
Wednesday, 13th April 2022.

Page 94



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions 

Annual Feedback Form 2021/2022 

 

 

 

 

 
Frequency of meetings:  Quarterly 
 
Number of meetings attended in 2021/22: 3 

Key activities undertaken in 2021/22 including type and any feedback given: 

 

 

 
 
 
What were the key outcomes and issues from your representation on this 
Outside Body for the Council and Copeland residents in 2021/22: 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name of Councillor(s): Andy Pratt

Name of Outside Body:  WCSSG LLWR 

Through this group we have been able to keep the wider community informed on work happening 
on the site and also future projects. It allows members of the group direct access to 
representatives from LLWR to raise issues directly like traffic flows through the local area noise 
and light pollution LLWR have worked closely with the community on traffic flows and have 
implemented traffic curfews at certain times of day on there staff traffic. They continue to do an 
excellent job of diverting waste not classed as Low-level waste for either recycling or other 
disposal which will extend the life of the facility. However, concern is being raised locally about the 
exploration to hold intermediate waste or near surface storage at the site and if its current permit 
or licence would let them 

To receive reports and updates on the work undertaken on the site key things this last year have 
been upgrade to the security of the site fence and building a new control centre on the site for 
security. Installation of a new internal road network ready for commencement of the capping of 
the trenches and vault 8 and 9. The site has started to do some exploratory work into a feasibility 
study into posable intermediate and near surface disposal.

Page 95



Please confirm if the outside body you represent CBC on pays or contributes 
to your travel and any other costs        

 

 

 

 

Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation 
to be carried forward into 2022/23? 

         

 

 

 

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation 
on this outside body     

yes 

 

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position: 

 

 

 

 

Signed: A Pratt                         Dated:12/4/2022          

Please email completed form to Rose Blaney, Scrutiny Officer, by 
Wednesday, 13th April 2022.        
          

Continue to meet with them to ensure total transparency into future work and project for the site 
and monitor impact on the community of the up-and-coming capping project

no

Page 96



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions 

Annual Feedback Form 2021/2022 

 

 

 

 

 
Frequency of meetings: half yearly 
 
Number of meetings attended in 2021/22: 2 

Key activities undertaken in 2021/22 including type and any feedback given: 

 

 

 
 
 
What were the key outcomes and issues from your representation on this 
Outside Body for the Council and Copeland residents in 2021/22: 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name of Councillor(s): Andy Pratt

Name of Outside Body:  WCSSG Emergency Planning Group

Security and resilience during  Covid Sellafield has hosted a test, track and trace facility for its 
work force and immediate family this has helped them maintain staffing levels on the site to 
continue to work almost normally this facility has now closed as of the 31/3/2022. Ways to 
communicate to the wider community were discussed and a new leaflet is to be produced and 
distributed households in the immediate emergency zone are to receive a fridge magnet with key 
emergency details on as a trial as it was felt the paper copy of the info can be easily lost

On site emergency drills and practises were reported and reconditions and finding on how it went 
or how to improve are discussed 

Dates are shared when offsite emergency practices are planned, and reports are fed back to the 
group on impact on the community

We also see details of actual events that have happened such as power failure to the site a land 
slip and high winds things like this have an effect on the safety of the operation on the site and 
reports are share how they respond and react to these unplanned events and what lessons can be 
learnt to ensure the safety of the ageing facility

Exercises at LLWR are also reported back to this group

 

To receive reports and updates on Security and Resilience, The Sellafield off site Emergency Plan 
and reports on emergency exercises and the forward plan of events

Meetings are attended by representatives from all the emergency services from onsite and off 
site also local parish councils the environment agency Cumbria county council and the office for 
nuclear regulation

Page 97



Please confirm if the outside body you represent CBC on pays or contributes 
to your travel and any other costs        

 

 

 

 

Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation 
to be carried forward into 2022/23? 

         

 

 

 

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation 
on this outside body     

yes 

 

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position: 

 

 

 

 

Signed: A Pratt                         Dated:12/4/2022          

Please email completed form to Rose Blaney, Scrutiny Officer, by 
Wednesday, 13th April 2022.        
          

Continue to meet with them to ensure all steps are being taken to ensure the maximum safety for 
our communities and the work force at the site

no

Page 98



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions 

Annual Feedback Form 2021/2022 

 

 

 

 

 
Frequency of meetings:   6 monthly 
 
Number of meetings attended in 2021/22: 2 

Key activities undertaken in 2021/22 including type and any feedback given: 

 

 

 
 
 
What were the key outcomes and issues from your representation on this 
Outside Body for the Council and Copeland residents in 2021/22: 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name of Councillor(s): Russell Studholme

Name of Outside Body:  Spent Fuel Management

The key outcome of the meeting was the impact Covid has had reducing the amount of remaining 
fuel and that any remaining fuel left when reprocessing end will be packaged and stored.

Shielded boxes had been designed and manufactured for this storage.

Other areas covered were the ongoing repackaging of legacy plutonium again suitable for long 
term storage and the construction of a new store for the storage of the material.  

The meetings this year covered the effect of covid on reprocessing fuel, repackaging of legacy 
plutonium, construction of a new store and the design and manufacture of shielded boxes for the 
long term storage of un-reprocessed fuel.

Page 99



Please confirm if the outside body you represent CBC on pays or contributes 
to your travel and any other costs        

 

 

 

 

Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation 
to be carried forward into 2022/23? 

         

 

 

 

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation 
on this outside body    Yes, the council should continue participation in the 
group as this group give insight into the long term management of legacy 
radioactive materials stored within the Councils boundaries. 

 

 

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position: 

 

 

 

 

Signed:                            Dated:          

none

no

Page 100



Please email completed form to Rose Blaney, Scrutiny Officer, by 
Wednesday, 13th April 2022.        
          

Page 101



This page is intentionally left blank



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions 

Annual Feedback Form 2021/2022 

 

 

 

 

 
Frequency of meetings:   6 monthly 
 
Number of meetings attended in 2021/22: 2 

Key activities undertaken in 2021/22 including type and any feedback given: 

 

 

 
 
 
What were the key outcomes and issues from your representation on this 
Outside Body for the Council and Copeland residents in 2021/22: 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name of Councillor(s): Russell Studholme

Name of Outside Body:  Environmental health working group

The key outcome of the meeting were that no exceedances in discharges had occurred from either 
site and dose to the general public from food stuff and external radiation were and inline with the 
previous years.

This year 2 meeting were held.

 These meeting covered the presentation of the annual Environmental monitoring program by 
both Sellafield and LLWR. A presentation by the Food standards agency on food sampling 
techniques and Finally a presentation by Sellafield limited on ground water borehole sampling

Followed by a  the presentation of the annual environmental monitoring reports for both 
Sellafield and The Low level waste repository 

Page 103



Please confirm if the outside body you represent CBC on pays or contributes 
to your travel and any other costs        

 

 

 

 

Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation 
to be carried forward into 2022/23? 

         

 

 

 

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation 
on this outside body  Yes the council should continue participation on this 
group as it give insight into the techniques and work carried out to monitor 
our environment and present the result of that work in a public forum.   

 

 

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position: 

 

 

 

 

Signed:                            Dated:          

None

no

Page 104



Please email completed form to Rose Blaney, Scrutiny Officer, by 
Wednesday, 13th April 2022.        
          

Page 105



This page is intentionally left blank



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions 

Annual Feedback Form 2021/2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Frequency of meetings:  As Required  
 
Number of meetings attended in 2021/22: 4 

Key activities undertaken in 2021/22 including type and any feedback given: 

 

 

 
 
 
What were the key outcomes and issues from your representation on this 
Outside Body for the Council and Copeland residents in 2021/22: 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name of Councillor(s): Felicity Wilson

Name of Outside Body:  Cumbria Community Foundation -West Cumbria 
Grants Panel

Grants P

Membership of the panel has enabled me to represent Copeland and to support projects in all of 
West Cumbria.. I have also been able to support meaningful project funding in the South Copeland 
area including

Around the Combe

Millom Park

The Network Centre

Moore Arts

Millom Cricket Club

Millom Junior Footballers 

Reviewing applications from organisations across West Cumbria (my area as South Copeland rep 
but looking closely at the whole of Copeland (Cllr Kane looking at Northern areas)

Attended the visit by the High Sherriff of Cumbria and his partner to see projects in Millom and 
Haverigg who have benefitted from Grants from the CCF. 

Mil

Page 107



 

Please confirm if the outside body you represent CBC on pays or contributes 
to your travel and any other costs        

 

 

 

I can 

Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation 
to be carried forward into 2022/23? 

         

 

 

 

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation 
on this outside body     

I believe it is important for Copeland to have full representation on the panel 

 

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position: 

I feel we must look carefully at Copelands place on Outside Bodies especially as 
we transition into Cumberland Council. 

 

Signed: F.Wilson                           Dated: 12.04.22         

Please email completed form to Rose Blaney, Scrutiny Officer, by 
Wednesday, 16th March 2022.        
          

I would like to thank Mrs Cath Giel for supporting the inclusion of membership of the Panel from 
South Copeland Area.

I can confirm I receive no contribution to my travel or costs.

Page 108



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions 

Annual Feedback Form 2021/2022 

 

 

 

 

 
Frequency of meetings:    
Quarterly (2) 
Number of meetings attended in 2021/22:  (3WCSSG) & (3RHR and WM Sub Com) 

Key activities undertaken in 2021/22 including type and any feedback given: 

 

 

 

 
 
 
What were the key outcomes and issues from your representation on this Outside Body 
for the Council and Copeland residents in 2021/22: 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Please confirm if the outside body you represent CBC on pays or contributes 
to your travel and any other costs        

 

Name of Councillor(s): Felicity Wilson

Name of Outside Body: West Cumbria Site Stakeholder Group and Risk 
Hazard Reduction and Waste Management Sub Committee

 

We have discussed Waste Management Issues and looked at social impacts and concerns. and 
have been made aware of Sellafield and The Low-Level Waste Repositories Future Programmes 
and Plans.

The NDA and Sites Executives have given open and informative presentations and responses to 
issues raised at these meetings. We have been given the opportunity to have open discussions 
with Project and Departmental leads.

I am Chairman of the Risk Hazard Reduction and Waste Management Sub Committee and we are 
able to have in depth discussions with Project Managers and their Teams which I believe are 
useful to all parties.

Formally reporting to the Risk Hazard Reduction and Waste Management Sub Committee.

Reporting to CBCs Strategic Nuclear Energy Board as required/ appropriate.

I participated in the NDAs National Webinair “Keeping the Conversation Going” which 
underpinned how important Stakeholder Engagement is to both Nuclear Facilities and their local 
Communities. 

I can confirm I receive no contribution to my travel or costs

Page 109



 

 

 

Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation 
to be carried forward into 2022/23? 

         

 

 

 

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation 
on this outside body     

I feel it is imperative that CBC continues our representation, especially as we 
embark on our transition into Cumberland Council.  

 

 

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position: 

 

 

 

 

Signed: F.Wilson                           Dated: 12.04.22         

Please email completed form to Rose Blaney, Scrutiny Officer, by 
Wednesday, 16th March 2022.        
          

I was asked to participate in a “film” highlighting the work undertaken by the RHR and WM sub-
Committee. This was Facilitated by Rosina Robinson and her Team and gave me a wonderful 
opportunity to see some of the groundbreaking work being undertaken at Sellafield. I hope as 
soon as COVID permits members of the WCSSG are given the opportunity to visit.

Page 110



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions 

Annual Feedback Form 2021/2022 

 

 

 

 

 
Frequency of meetings:  Quarterly   
 
Number of meetings attended in 2021/22: 4 

Key activities undertaken in 2021/22 including type and any feedback given: 

 

 

 
 
 
What were the key outcomes and issues from your representation on this 
Outside Body for the Council and Copeland residents in 2021/22: 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name of Councillor(s): Mayor Mike Starkie

Name of Outside Body:  BEC Board 

2021/22 Projects focussed on 

 North Shore Regeneration Proposal 

 Hotel Development Proposals 

 Bus Station Project (complete)

 Completion of Sale of Whittles and Proposals for Development 

 Completion of Sale - Red Lion Site Egremont 

 Whitehaven Digital Grid Project 

 Westlakes Project

 Significant investment in town centre regeneration 

Page 111



Please confirm if the outside body you represent CBC on pays or contributes 
to your travel and any other costs        

 

 

 

 

Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation 
to be carried forward into 2022/23? 

         

 

 

 

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation 
on this outside body     

Yes  

 

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position: 

 

 

Signed:                            Dated: 07/04/22          

Please email completed form to Rose Blaney, Scrutiny Officer, by 
Wednesday, 13th April 2022.        
          

Member and Officer Representation is essential on the BEC Board undertaken by myself 
and the Chief Executive 

No

Page 112



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions 

Annual Feedback Form 2021/2022 

 

 

 

 

 
Frequency of meetings:  Usually Quarterly but only 3 have taken place this year.  In 
addition a workshop was held   
 
Number of meetings attended in 2021/22: 4  (attended by Substitute:  Portfolio 

 Holder for Environment, Place and 
 Inclusive Communities)   

Key activities undertaken in 2021/22 including type and any feedback given: 

 

 

 
 
 
What were the key outcomes and issues from your representation on this 
Outside Body for the Council and Copeland residents in 2021/22: 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Name of Councillor(s): Mayor Mike Starkie

Name of Outside Body:  Copeland Community Fund 

Large grants approved included 

 PEC
 Social Prescribing 
 Grants in line with the Children and Young Peoples Theme (Shackles Off; Phoenix 

Youth Project)
 Flood Risk Management Scheme, Egremont 
 Calderwood House 
 Community Resilience Fund Projects 

The Board is the decision-making body for large grant requests. 

All decisions made in line with socio economic guidelines. Also links in with CBC’s social 
inclusion agenda

Page 113



 

 

Please confirm if the outside body you represent CBC on pays or contributes 
to your travel and any other costs        

 

 

 

 

Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation 
to be carried forward into 2022/23? 

         

 

 

 

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation 
on this outside body     

Yes 

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position: 

 

Signed:        Dated:  7 April 2022          

Please email completed form to Rose Blaney, Scrutiny Officer, by 
Wednesday, 13th April 2022.        
          

No

Page 114



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions 

Annual Feedback Form 2021/2022 

 

 

 

 

 
Frequency of meetings:   Quarterly  but replaced in July by the CLOF  
     and West Leaders Meetings due to LGR 
 
Number of meetings attended in 2021/22:  

Key activities undertaken in 2021/22 including type and any feedback given: 

 

 

 
 
 
What were the key outcomes and issues from your representation on this 
Outside Body for the Council and Copeland residents in 2021/22: 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name of Councillor(s): Mayor Mike Starkie 

Name of Outside Body:  Joint Districts/Cumbria Leaders Board 

Joint Districts Committee and the Leaders Board have been overtaken by the CLOF 
(Cumbria Leaders Oversight Forum) and West Leaders meeting which take place on a 
weekly basis 

Each weekly CLOF meeting focuses on one of the work streams within the LGR 
programme detailing an overview of the service, policy and strategy and day 1 readiness 

The weekly West Leaders Meeting focuses in particular on the programme for 
Cumberland  

Preparation for Local Government Reorganisation and the delivery of two new councils 
for Cumbria 

Updates and overview of current countywide issues 

Page 115



 

Please confirm if the outside body you represent CBC on pays or contributes 
to your travel and any other costs        

 

 

 

 

Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation 
to be carried forward into 2022/23? 

         

 

 

 

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation 
on this outside body     

Yes 

 

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position: 

 

 

Signed:                              Dated: 05/05/22          

Please email completed form to Rose Blaney, Scrutiny Officer, by 
Wednesday, 13th April 2022.        
          

No

Page 116



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions 

Annual Feedback Form 2021/2022 

 

 

 

 

 
Frequency of meetings:  Quarterly   
 
Number of meetings attended in 2021/22: 4 

Key activities undertaken in 2021/22 including type and any feedback given: 

 

 

 
 
 
What were the key outcomes and issues from your representation on this 
Outside Body for the Council and Copeland residents in 2021/22: 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name of Councillor(s): Mayor Mike Starkie 

Name of Outside Body:  West Cumbria Site Stakeholder Group

Reports received regularly from the following sub committees

  Low Level Waste Repository
  Environmental Health 
  Risk & Hazard Reduction & Waste Management 
  Spent Fuel Management and Nuclear Materials
  Emergency Planning
   Enablers

The WCSSG is the vehicle for elected representatives and community partners to 
scrutinise the nuclear industry (SL, LLWR and NDA) and also links in with the nuclear 
agenda.

Page 117



Please confirm if the outside body you represent CBC on pays or contributes 
to your travel and any other costs        

 

 

 

 

Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation 
to be carried forward into 2022/23? 

         

 

 

 

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation 
on this outside body     

Yes  

 

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position: 

 

 

Signed:                             Dated: 07/04/22          

Please email completed form to Rose Blaney, Scrutiny Officer, by 
Wednesday, 13th April 2022.        
          

Deputy Chairmans Allowance payable annually 

Page 118



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions 

Annual Feedback Form 2021/2022 

 

 

 

 

 
Frequency of meetings:    
 
Number of meetings attended in 2021/22: 4 

Key activities undertaken in 2021/22 including type and any feedback given: 

 

 

 
 
 
What were the key outcomes and issues from your representation on this 
Outside Body for the Council and Copeland residents in 2021/22: 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name of Councillor(s): Allan Forster

Name of Outside Body:  Armed Forces Champion

Greater awareness of the above mentioned issues and a lot of community involvement

VJ Day remembrance August 15th 2021 Unveiled a plaque to remember those involved in this 
campaign is Located in the Grounds of St Nicholas Church in Whitehaven. Well attended by all 
Services e.g. Fire, Police, Ambulance, RBL, Army, etc Celebration parties in Local Care hmes.

December 10 Walking with the Wounded over 30 miles walk which ended in Carlisle to raise 
awareness of Mental Health in Veterans. Well attended with media coverage.

Appendix B

Page 119



Please confirm if the outside body you represent CBC on pays or contributes 
to your travel and any other costs        

 

 

 

 

Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation 
to be carried forward into 2022/23? 

         

 

 

 

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation 
on this outside body     

Yes indeed as this is a vey important body to be on. 

 

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position: 

 

Very enjoyable role and informative 

 

 

Signed: Allan Forster                           Dated:   14/4/22       

Please email completed form to Rose Blaney, Scrutiny Officer, by 
Wednesday, 16th March 2022.         

  

Plenty of support and encouragement from the Lord Luiten ant of Cumbria.

No

Page 120



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions 

Annual Feedback Form 2021/2022 

 

 

 

 

 
Frequency of meetings:   N/A 
 
Number of meetings attended in 2021/22: N/A 

Key activities undertaken in 2021/22 including type and any feedback given: 

 

 

 
 
 
What were the key outcomes and issues from your representation on this 
Outside Body for the Council and Copeland residents in 2021/22: 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name of Councillor(s): Sam Pollen

Name of Outside Body:  Homelessness Champion

In the past 12 months hundreds of households have been assessed, received advice and 
been rehoused. Many families have been placed into temporary accommodation and 
vital support has been given for people in abusive relationships.

Although we have been unable to hold face to face meetings during the Covid pandemic, 
Gemma Coward (CBC Housing Team Leader) has provided regular updates and arranged 
Teams meetings as and when required with Cllr Pratt (Housing Portfolio Holder) and 
myself.

The role provides an opportunity to raise awareness of homelessness and highlight the 
outstanding work that our officers and partner organisations do for the most vulnerable 
people in our community. Our homelessness prevention team continue to do exceptional 
work and success rates continue to be above the regional and national average.

Page 121



Please confirm if the outside body you represent CBC on pays or contributes 
to your travel and any other costs        

 

 

 

 

Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation 
to be carried forward into 2022/23? 

         

 

 

 

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation 
on this outside body     

Yes 

 

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position: 

 

 

 

Signed:  SPollen                          Dated:   13.04.22       

Please email completed form to Rose Blaney, Scrutiny Officer, by 
Wednesday, 16th March 2022.        
             

  

I recently attended the Calderwood House coffee morning in Egremont with several other 
Councillors. It was the first opportunity to get together for a long time, and great to be 
reminded of the fantastic work being done in our community. As Covid restrictions are 
reduced, Cllr Pratt and myself will have the opportunity to visit all partner organisations in 
Copeland to support and promote the incredible work being done in increasingly 
challenging times.

Policies introduced during the pandemic to prevent homelessness have now ended and all 
Councils are predicting a rise in homelessness. Over 200,000 people in the UK are homeless 
and almost 3000 are sleeping rough. The cut to universal credit and the cost of living crisis 
will have a significant impact on every community in the country, including Copeland. 

N/A

Page 122

tel:+443000


Members on Outside Bodies or Champions 

Annual Feedback Form 2021/2022 

 

 

 

 

 
Frequency of meetings:   Dependant on circumstances 
 
Number of meetings attended in 2021/22: None – reliant on Email and 

phone calls to Independent 
Bodies 

Key activities undertaken in 2021/22 including type and any feedback given: 

 

 

 
 
 
What were the key outcomes and issues from your representation on this 
Outside Body for the Council and Copeland residents in 2021/22: 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Name of Councillor(s): Eileen Weir

Name of Outside Body:  Anti-Social Behaviour Champion

I resolved last year, to engage with Home Group Limited, especially since the change of 
Managers became apparent and to remind any new personnel what I considered the 
most relevant concerns of residents within Whitehaven Central Ward.

The main issue is the prevention of FIRE, where historically there had been fires in two 
central underpasses due to fly tipping where large sofas were being dumped, resulting in 
both homeless and night life residents leaving aluminium cans and glass bottles lying in 
the immediate vicinity.

Residents whose wheelie bins had been emptied by Copeland Borough Council Waste 
Dept. were regularly being left in both these alleyways and not taken back to base, i.e 
outside their own designated are.

The consequences of lock-down due to Covid 19 imposed upon our community,  meant I 
was unable to have face to face meetings from mid-summer of 2021 until December.

Virtual Meetings held throughout the aforesaid 6 month period involved All Member 
participation from which I could extrapolate issues which I recognised as being relevant to 
me.

Page 123



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IT WAS AGREED: That a different approach was needed.  Home Group Ltd listened to my 
concerns and after discussing the size of the two extended Car Parks in Birley Court 
Queen Street Whitehaven and areas belonging to The Harbour Commissioners, that two 
large fenced off areas be established in order for residents to park their emptied wheelie 
bins, leave them 

In situ until the next collection, then identify their numbered bins and take them to the 
designated areas which the Waste Operatives could reach and empty.

Unfortunately, many residents did NOT take the emptied bins across to the fenced in 
area but resorted to previous behaviour & left them in front of their back doors. Full 
circle problems arose once more, seagulls, rodents, pigeons, and wild cats scavenging 
amongst the overfilled bins littering the paved areas. Extra vigilance was required but 
unfortunately residents excused their behaviour blaming self-isolating due to Covid 19. 

Home Group were informed, they removed all the rubbish, jet sprayed the concrete tiles 
and the newly appointed Manager informed me they had decided to spend a bit of cash 
in the community to uplift and revitalise the open spaces. Letters were once more 
circulated and I reminded local shop owners to support this endeavour, especially during 
Bonfire Night celebrations.

Fire engines were called out, but nothing like the scale of previous years.

IT WAS PROPOSED  by me that: Home Group Ltd needed to inform their many residents, 
THE REASON why their Duke Street office was NOT open to the public. Their Senior 
Management informed me they would revisit the idea of having a Drop-In centre as I 
previously suggested. This would be dependent upon demand. 

I suggested the only way to inform residents is to inform residents by either Posters, 
leafleting and other means of advertising and NOT to expect the residents to be mind 
readers.

It was AGREED at the beginning of the year that a useful leaflet would be produced and 
distributed to residents. I requested a supply of these leaflets to be posted to me.

Received undated letter from Home Group, on  7th inst. With a Contact Leaflet, which he 
informs me “This may not end up being the finished article, however it will not be far off 
the finished product if we do make any further amendments”.

Unfortunately this leaflet is totally insufficient. It is essentially a poster only giving  the 
Home Group Mobile number and opening hours. It is little wonder many residents are 
frustrated.

There is absolutely no explanation for residents to understand the reason WHY the Duke 
Street Office is permanently closed.

I am astounded that almost a year has elapsed since I spoke to the Operations Manager 
about the constant demand from her customers, as to WHY their office is closed. The 
production of this inadequate leaflet negates all the efforts I have made. Page 124



 

 

 

 

Please confirm if the outside body you represent CBC on pays or contributes 
to your travel and any other costs        

 

 

 

 

Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation 
to be carried forward into 2022/23? 

         

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

HIGHWAYS ISSUES: Changes to the Highway Code commencing 29th January 2022.

There are 8 things people need to know to improve the safety of people walking, cycling 
and riding horses: These changes are to prevent vulnerable road users and people 
standing.

I contacted the County Councillor for Seascale & Gosforth who is a member of the 
County Councils CRASH Team to ascertain whether there had been any issues reported 
to the Team.

His reply on the 6th inst. was as follows: “There are no problems currently in 
Whitehaven.”

Of course, I cannot agree with him. Speeding over 30.m.p.h. in Duke Street Whitehaven 
shows no improvement. 

I would like to draw attention to the following potential hazards in relation to the new 
Highway Code.

At the double junction in Duke Street, outside Home Group Offices, vehicles travelling 
down Church Street and onto Duke Street with the intention of turning right into the 
lower section of Queen Street, indicate and slow down before turning into Queen Street.

N/A

People need explanations, otherwise they further resort to all the anti-social behaviours 
of recent years.

I do intend to spend any further time on this.

Page 125



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

When a person is already standing on the pavement edge outside Home Group offices, 
with the intention of crossing the road to the centre island before continuing to walk the 
next section, they observe the vehicle turning right, they also observe vehicles following 
behind which slow down because they, as a pedestrian, are standing on the road edge. 
Perfectly courteous behaviour. However, the person standing hesitates to cross, WHY, 
because they cannot see vehicles approaching BEHIND the slowed down vehicle in front. 
Consequently, they are rooted to the spot.

If the slowed down vehicle is a van, it is impossible for pedestrians to see over the top, 
resulting in their reluctance to cross the road as they cannot observe if there is a following 
vehicle.

I mention this hazard, because it is a legitimate concern of mine and will be to other 
Members who know their areas.  I request that Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
members 

Take on board this observation and seek to pass on to the CRASH team any concerns they 
may have observed or had reported to them.

The positive observation is that our road users are observing the new Highway Code 
Regulations.

GENERAL ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOURS: In September 2021 there was a Photograph 
Exhibition held at the Harbourside Front, photographs displayed on the railings for public 
viewing. These photographs were decimated by vandals causing much distress to those 
who provided and organised the Exhibition.  Anti—Social behaviour of this type is 
abhorrent to the general public. 

There is evidence that aluminium cannisters of all varieties are being wilfully pushed up 
drainpipes causing the gutters to overflow on to pavements, along with the debris already 
in the gutters.

Especially evident where bus stops are located in built up areas. It is idle destruction.

Teenagers continue to ride their mountain bikes on pavements, giving no warning to 
pedestrians.

Glass bottles being left on window ledges. No improvement there.

Motor bikes speeding around Whitehaven late evenings prompt residents to ring me. 
Highways CRASH team are aware of the problem.

Distington Cemetery graffiti has offended residents attending funerals and visiting grave 
sides.

I continue to reassure residents that Copeland Borough Council are seriously looking to 
review the whole issue of items left on and beside graves, to see how a compromise can 
be reached without causing undue upset during emotionally challenging times.

Page 126



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation 
on this outside body     

Yes 

 

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position: 

I feel comfortable making observations because I recognise right from wrong. 

SAFER STREETS

Making Cumbria a safer place. In 2021 The Home Office Launched a Violence against Women & 
Girls strategy with four distinct priorities:

1. Prevention
2. Supporting
3. Pursuing perpetrators.
4. Strengthening the system.

Between 3rd March 2021 – January 2022 – 425 sexual offences, 395 rapes and 1982 
stalking and harassment issues were reported by women in Cumbria.

These figures are alarming.  It is important for residents to look for signs of abuse.

1. Injuries
2. Substance abuse.
3. Personality changes.
4. Low self esteem.
5. Stopping socialising.
6. Signs of stress and anxiety.
7. Absence from work, school, college.
8. Modern Day Slavery of Children.
9.

Home Office data shows that 17 potential modern day slavery cases were flagged to 
Cumbria Constabulary last year.

There is a Charity called “UNSEEN” who are bringing to the Home Office’s attention that 
MORE needs to be done to disrupt the growing demand of this exploitative practice.

WE Members can all be involved in observing unusual behaviours.

There is a Public Protection Unit – Looking to identify abuse of the elderly. Preventing 
and reporting cases of elderly abuse should be the responsibility of us all.

Assault, neglect, high value financial abuse and rape often go unreported by elderly 
people. Unseen but sensitive observation from us all can help identify concerns. WE all 
have a duty of care.

Page 127



The Police & Crime team do an excellent job.  They cannot know everything which is going 
on. Their reliance on feedback from members is essential. Neither can any County 
Councillor on the CRASH TEAM imply everything is fine.  

Home Group Ltd continues to be a major influence within Copeland, we have to ensure 
they listen to we Members who have the advantage of understanding how their residents 
feel by making ourselves approachable. 

 

 

 

 

Signed: Eileen Weir                           Dated:  10th April 2022 

Please email completed form to Rose Blaney, Scrutiny Officer, by 
Wednesday, 16th March 2022.        
           

  

Page 128



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions 

Annual Feedback Form 2020/21 

 

 

 

 

 
Frequency of meetings:   As and when required 
 
Number of meetings attended in 2020/21: 2 

Reporting activities undertaken in 2020/21 including type and where feedback given: 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2020/21: 
 

 

 

 

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs        

 

 

 

 

 

Name of Councillor(s): Douglas Wilson

Name of Outside Body:  Champion; Small & Medium Enterprises

I have recently assisted a new business in relation to their qualification onto the Sellafield Ltd 
Supply Chain. I have aided in sourcing accommodation and have attended Cumbria LEP Video 
conferences including;  Future Development Plans in Cumbria

I Delivered a remote Presentation to the Cumbria Branch of the Chartered Quality Institute on 
the subject of ISO 19443. Quality Management Systems. Specific Requirements For The 
Application Of ISO 9001:2015 By Organizations In The Supply Chain Of The Nuclear Energy Sector 
Supplying Products And Services Important To Nuclear Safety. There were around 100 attendees 
and the presentation was well received.

The pandemic has provided some handicaps and also opportunities to think and deliver 
outcomes in more innovative ways.

 

My principal involvement was related to advising and encouraging local companies to engage in 
and make use of the number of Government grants that had been made available to help sustain 
SMEs during the Covid19 pandemic. My main interaction with SMEs has been at a personal level 
where I have been able to assist in resolving problems and queries that arise that are Copeland 
related. I can relate to these businesses as my career has brought me into close contact with a 
wide variety and types of businesses.

Page 129



Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2021/22? 

         

 

 

 

 

 

 

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body. 

The function as it stands is useful in so much as it allows the Council to present and point towards 
an initiative that is aimed at helping and assisting SMEs, which is particularly welcome during 
these difficult times.  The Function should I believe remain. 

    

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position: 

No further comments 

Signed: 
 

Dated:  30/04/2021 

 

                                     

            

Please email completed form to Rose Blaney, Scrutiny Officer, by Wednesday, 13th 
May 2021.           
        

       

Since the onset of the Covid 19 pandemic the focus has been on assisting and advising particularly 
the smaller businesses on the routes for grant claims and the assistance that Copeland BC has 
been providing during these testing times. My interaction with these organisations has enabled 
me to appreciate the difficulties they are experiencing.  This is particularly impacting upon 
hospitality, retail and personal services where close contact cannot be avoided.  

The feed-back I have received from some of these companies has been particularly heartening, as 
their comments in relation to Copeland’s staff and the help they have given has been particularly 
complimentary.

Page 130



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions

Annual Feedback Form 2021/2022

Name of Councillor(s): (^QnVYYB QuOSCIAIq

Name of Outside Body: V\jCSS61 L L V\J K WlUhf]

Frequency of meetings:

Number of meetings attended in 2021/22:

Key activities undertaken in 2021/22 including type and any feedback given:

KO WslMAkcg

What were the key outcomes and issues from your representation on this
Outside Body for the Council and Copeland residents in 2021/22:

Appendix C

Page 131



Please confirm if the outside body you represent CBC on pays or contributes 
to your travel and any other costs

Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation 
to be carried forward into 2022/23?

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation 
on this outside body

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position:

Signed: Dated: j

Please email completed form to Rose Blaney, Scrutiny Officer, by 
Wednesday, 13th April 2022.

Page 132



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions

Annual Feedback Form 2021/2022

Name of Councillor(s): C\C.i\UvVd DlASCl’W

Name of Outside B°dy:

Frequency of meetings:

Number of meetings attended in 2021/22:

Key activities undertaken in 2021/22 including type and any feedback given:

nowmiMw CM

What were the key outcomes and issues from your representation on this
Outside Body for the Council and Copeland residents in 2021/22:

Page 133



Please confirm if the outside body you represent CBC on pays or contributes 
to your travel and any other costs

Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation 
to be carried forward into 2022/23?

Dated:Signed:

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation 
on this outside body Ma n I + n

'would do to iw by KG./ to
Please use this space to provide any comment on your position: | v W w)i be

Please email completed form to Rose Blaney, Scrutiny Officer, by 
Wednesday, 13th April 2022.

Page 134



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions 

Annual Feedback Form 2021/2022 

 

 

 

 

 
Frequency of meetings:   N/A 
 
Number of meetings attended in 2021/22: N/A 

Key activities undertaken in 2021/22 including type and any feedback given: 

 

 

 
 
 
What were the key outcomes and issues from your representation on this 
Outside Body for the Council and Copeland residents in 2021/22: 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name of Councillor(s): John Kane

Name of Outside Body:  Cumbria Community Foundation

Unable to attend due to travel issues.

Page 135



Please confirm if the outside body you represent CBC on pays or contributes 
to your travel and any other costs        

 

 

 

 

Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation 
to be carried forward into 2022/23? 

         

 

 

 

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation 
on this outside body     

 

 

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position: 

 

 

 

 

Signed:                            Dated:          

Please email completed form to Rose Blaney, Scrutiny Officer, by 
Wednesday, 16th March 2022.        
          

Page 136



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions 

Annual Feedback Form 2021/2022 

 

 

 

 

 
Frequency of meetings:   N/A 
 
Number of meetings attended in 2021/22: N/A 

Key activities undertaken in 2021/22 including type and any feedback given: 

 

 

 
 
 
What were the key outcomes and issues from your representation on this 
Outside Body for the Council and Copeland residents in 2021/22: 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name of Councillor(s): John Kane

Name of Outside Body:  Cumbria Health & Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee

Unable to attend due to travel issues.

Page 137



Please confirm if the outside body you represent CBC on pays or contributes 
to your travel and any other costs        

 

 

 

 

Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation 
to be carried forward into 2022/23? 

         

 

 

 

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation 
on this outside body     

 

 

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position: 

 

 

 

 

Signed:                            Dated:          

Please email completed form to Rose Blaney, Scrutiny Officer, by 
Wednesday, 16th March 2022.        
          

Page 138



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions 

Annual Feedback Form 2021/2022 

 

 

 

 

 
Frequency of meetings:  Not aware.  
 
Number of meetings attended in 2021/22: None. 

Key activities undertaken in 2021/22 including type and any feedback given: 

 

 

 
 
 
What were the key outcomes and issues from your representation on this 
Outside Body for the Council and Copeland residents in 2021/22: 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name of Councillor(s):Michael A McVeigh

WCSSG.

Page 139



Please confirm if the outside body you represent CBC on pays or contributes 
to your travel and any other costs        

 

 

 

 

Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation 
to be carried forward into 2022/23? 

         

 

 

 

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation 
on this outside body     

Yes 

 

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position: 

Not aware of any meetings that I should have taken part in. 

 

 

 

Signed: M A McVeigh                           Dated:27-3-22          

Please email completed form to Rose Blaney, Scrutiny Officer, by 
Wednesday, 13th April 2022.        
          

Page 140



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions

Annual Feedback Form 2021/2022

Name of Councillor(s):

Name of Outside Body: Q

Frequency of meetings:

Number of meetings attended in 2021/22: Q

Key activities undertaken in 2021/22 including type and any feedback given:

r'V

What were the key outcomes and issues from your representation on this
Outside Body for the Council and Copeland residents in 2021/22:

Page 141



Please confirm if the outside body you represent CBC on pays or contributes 
to your travel and any other costs

Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation 
to be carried forward into 2022/23?

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation 
on this outside body

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position:
-TO k to

Signed:

Please email completed form to Rose Blaney, Scrutiny Officer, by
Wednesday, 13th April 2022.

Page 142



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions 

Annual Feedback Form 2021/2022 

 

 

 

 

 
Frequency of meetings:    
 
Number of meetings attended in 2021/22:  

Key activities undertaken in 2021/22 including type and any feedback given: 

 

 

 
 
 
What were the key outcomes and issues from your representation on this 
Outside Body for the Council and Copeland residents in 2021/22: 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name of Councillor(s): Andy Pratt

Name of Outside Body:  Democracy and Engagement

None I haven’t meet with anyone this year with the extra workload staff and officers have had 
due to LGR. There are loads of documents available to cross reference available.

 Once or if the workload of staff and officers reduce and I keep this role I will pick it up with them

Page 143



Please confirm if the outside body you represent CBC on pays or contributes 
to your travel and any other costs        

 

 

 

 

Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation 
to be carried forward into 2022/23? 

         

 

 

 

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation 
on this outside body     

 

 

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position: 

 

 

 

 

Signed: A Pratt                         Dated:12/4/2022          

Please email completed form to Rose Blaney, Scrutiny Officer, by 
Wednesday, 13th April 2022.        
          

We used to have a designated staff member to fulfil this role and work with external groups and 
stakeholder’s if posable to re identify who this is within the staffing structure

no

Page 144



Information Classification - UNCLASSIFIED

Members on Outside Bodies or Champions 

Annual Feedback Form 2021/2022 

 

 

 

 

 
Frequency of meetings:  **These meeting are attended by the Chief Financial 

Officer**  
 
Number of meetings attended in 2021/22: 0 

Key activities undertaken in 2021/22 including type and any feedback given: 

 

 

 
 
 
What were the key outcomes and issues from your representation on this 
Outside Body for the Council and Copeland residents in 2021/22: 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name of Councillor(s): Mike Starkie 

Name of Outside Body:  Pensions Forum 

Page 145



Information Classification - UNCLASSIFIED

 

Please confirm if the outside body you represent CBC on pays or contributes 
to your travel and any other costs        

 

 

 

 

Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation 
to be carried forward into 2022/23? 

         

 

 

 

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation 
on this outside body     

As these meeting are attended by the Chief Financial Officer who will report back to 
members if necessary no member representation is required  

 

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position: 

 

Signed:                            Dated: 07/04/22          

Please email completed form to Rose Blaney, Scrutiny Officer, by 
Wednesday, 13th April 2022.        
          

Page 146



Overview & Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 

Standing Items (Items will only appear on the agenda should there be an update) 

Item Corporate Plan Priority Purpose Lead Officer 

Executive Forward Plan 
 

All To identify any forthcoming 
items which the Committee 
may consider. 

Chief Executive 

Scrutiny Officer Updates All To update the Committee on 
the progress of Task and Finish 
Groups and the Work 
Programme 

Scrutiny Officer 

 

Agenda Items for Committee Meetings 

Date Expected Item Corporate Plan Priority Detail Lead Officer 

26th May 
2022 

Outside Bodies Annual 
Report 2022 

All Annual Outside Bodies 
Report for 2022 

Director of Corporate 
Services and 
Commercial  
Strategy (M.O.) 

 Annual Scrutiny Report 
2022 

All Annual Scrutiny Report for 
2022 

Director of Corporate 
Services and 
Commercial  
Strategy (M.O.) 

P
age 147

A
genda Item

 9



Date Expected Item Corporate Plan Priority Detail Lead Officer 

 2021/22 Finance 
Report – Quarter 3 

All Report on the financial 
position of Copeland 
Council at the end of 
quarter two of 2020/21 

Director of Financial 
Resources 

 2021/22 Council 
Performance Plan – 
Quarter 3 

All Report on the performance 
of Copeland Council at the 
end of quarter two of 
2020/21 

Director of Corporate 
Services and 
Commercial  
Strategy  

7th July 2022 2021/22 Finance 
Report – Quarter 4 

All Report on the financial 
position of Copeland 
Council at the end of 
quarter two of 2020/21 

Director of Financial 
Resources 

 2021/22 Council 
Performance Plan – 
Quarter 4 

All Report on the performance 
of Copeland Council at the 
end of quarter two of 
2020/21 

Director of Corporate 
Services and 
Commercial  
Strategy  

 DLUHC Reports All Reports from the Finance 
Team relating to the DLUHC 
report 

Director of Financial 
Resources 

 Health & Safety 
Monitoring Half Yearly 
Report 1st Jan – 30th 
June 2022 

All Report on the Health & 
Safety Monitoring for the 
period of 1st January to 30th 
June 2022 

HR Manager 

P
age 148



Date Expected Item Corporate Plan Priority Detail Lead Officer 

18th August 
2022 

Task & Finish Groups 
Update Report 

All Report on the ongoing Task 
& Finish Groups 

Scrutiny Officer 

29th 
September 
2022 

2021/22 Finance 
Report – Quarter 1 

All Report on the financial 
position of Copeland 
Council at the end of 
quarter two of 2020/21 

Director of Financial 
Resources 

 2021/22 Council 
Performance Plan – 
Quarter 1 

All Report on the performance 
of Copeland Council at the 
end of quarter two of 
2020/21 

Director of Corporate 
Services and 
Commercial  
Strategy  

10th 
November 
2022 

TBC    

15th 
December 
2022 

2021/22 Finance 
Report – Quarter 2 

All Report on the financial 
position of Copeland 
Council at the end of 
quarter two of 2020/21 

Director of Financial 
Resources 

 2021/22 Council 
Performance Plan – 
Quarter 2 

All Report on the performance 
of Copeland Council at the 
end of quarter two of 
2020/21 

Director of Corporate 
Services and 
Commercial  
Strategy  

P
age 149



Date Expected Item Corporate Plan Priority Detail Lead Officer 

 Yearly Review All A Review by Scrutiny Officer 
to highlight the work done 
throughout the year, work 
to do in 2023 and any 
improvements 

Scrutiny Officer 

19th January 
2023 

Task & Finish Groups 
Final Report 

All Report regarding the 
ongoing Task & Finish 
Groups 

Scrutiny Officer 

23rd February 
2023  

Copeland Scrutiny 
Report 

All A report by the Scrutiny 
Officer detailing the work 
completed by the 
Committee throughout 
22/23, previous 
achievements and the 
future for Cumberland 
Scrutiny. 

Scrutiny Officer 

 

Items to be programmed into the OSC Work Programme 2021/22 

P
age 150



      

Page 1 of 1 

Task and Finish Group Monitoring 

Task and Finish 
Group 
 

Chair of Task 
and Finish 
Group 

Progress  Next Step  Estimated 
Completion 
Date 

Health and 
Wellbeing North 
Copeland 

Cllr John Kane Membership 
confirmed. 

Group decided to discontinue due to 
lack on capacity. 

DISCONTINUED 

Health and 
Wellbeing South 
Copeland 

Cllr Fee 
Wilson 

Membership 
confirmed. 

Group decided to discontinue due to 
lack on capacity. 

DISCONTINUED 

Housing Cllr Mike 
Hawkins 

Membership 
confirmed. 

Group meeting in February 2022 to 
discuss how to move forward. 

TEMPORARILY 
PAUSED 

Cemetery 
Management Rules 

TBC Membership 
confirmed 

Confirm membership and arrange 
scoping meeting 

TBC 

 
 

P
age 151



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 3 March 2022
	4 Executive Forward Plan
	5 Finance Report 2021-22 - Quarter 3
	SUMMARY:
	This Budget Monitoring report sets out the Quarter 3 (Q3 - to the end of December 2021) forecast year-end results against the Council’s Revenue and Capital Budgets for the 2021/22 financial year.
	RECOMMENDATION:
	1. Note the 2021/22 revenue forecast outturn net underspend of (£147k), (See Paragraph 1.4 and Appendix A);
	2. Note the summary of the revenue outturn variances set out in paragraph 1.6).
	List of Appendices
	List of Background Documents:
	None
	Appendix A
	2021/22 Budget Monitoring Forecast Outturn by Service

	6 Performance Plan 2021-22 - Quarter 3
	Appendix A Key Deliverables Report Q3 2021-22
	Appendix B KPI report Q3 2021-22

	7 Annual Scrutiny Report
	Appendix A - Overview and Scrutiny Committee Annual Report 2021-22 draft
	Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2021-2022


	8 Outside Bodies Annual Report
	OB 2021.22 - Cllr Banks - WCSSG Risk
	OB 2021.22 - Cllr Branney - Lake District National Park
	OB 2021.22 - Cllr Everett - RNEC
	OB 2021.22 - Cllr Everett - WCSSG Risk and Hazard
	OB 2021.22 - Cllr Kane - Fuel Management
	OB 2021.22 - Cllr McVeigh - Alliance
	OB 2021.22 - Cllr Moore - CCFoundation
	OB 2021.22 - Cllr Moore - Copeland Community Fund
	OB 2021.22 - Cllr Moore - NuLeaf
	OB 2021.22 - Cllr Morgan - CSWP
	OB 2021.22 - Cllr Morgan - WCH
	OB 2021.22 - Cllr Morgan - WCSSG
	OB 2021.22 - Cllr Pratt - LLWR
	OB 2021.22 - Cllr Pratt- WCSSG Emergency Planning
	OB 2021.22 - Cllr Studholme - Spent Ffuel
	OB 2021.22 - Cllr Studholme Environmental Safety
	OB 2021.22 - Cllr Wilson - CCF Grants Panel
	OB 2021.22 - Cllr Wilson - WCSSG
	OB 2021.22 - Mayor - BEC Board
	OB 2021.22 - Mayor - Copeland Community Fund
	OB 2021.22 - Mayor - Joint Districts_CLB
	OB 2021.22 - Mayor - WCSSG
	Appendix B - Champions
	OB 2021.22 - Cllr Dinsdale - WCSSG & PCC
	OB 2021.22 - Cllr Kane - CCF
	OB 2021.22 - Cllr Kane - HWB
	OB 2021.22 - Cllr McVeigh - WCSSG
	OB 2021.22 - Cllr Minshaw - Howgate&Distington Partnership
	OB 2021.22 - Cllr Pratt - Democracey and Engagement
	OB 2021.22 - Mayor - Pensions Forum

	9 Scrutiny Officer Updates
	Task and Finish Group Updates Draft 2022-23




